::: Medicinrådet

Bilag til Medicinrådets anbefaling vedr. dostarlimab i kombination med carboplatin og paclitaxel til behandling af avanceret eller tilbagevendende dMMR/MSI-H kræft i livmoderslimhinden

Vers. 1.0



# Bilagsoversigt

- 1. Forhandlingsnotat fra Amgros vedr. dostarlimab i kombination med carboplatin og paclitaxel
- 2. Ansøgers endelige ansøgning vedr. dostarlimab i kombination med carboplatin og paclitaxel



Amgros I/S Dampfærgevej 22 2100 København Ø Danmark

T +45 88713000 F +45 88713008

Medicin@amgros.dk www.amgros.dk

#### 03.07.2024 CAF/MGK

# Forhandlingsnotat

Dato for behandling i Medicinrådet	28.08.2024
Leverandør	GlaxoSmithKline (GSK)
Lægemiddel	Jemperli (dostarlimab)
Ansøgt indikation	Til behandling af patienter med dMMR/MSI-H avanceret eller tilbagevendende endometriekræft, som er kandidater til systemisk behandling.
Nyt lægemiddel / indikationsudvidelse	Indikationsudvidelse

## Prisinformation

Amgros har forhandlet følgende pris på Jemperli (dostarlimab):

Tabel 1: Forhandlingsresultat

Lægemiddel	Styrke	Pakningsstørrelse	AIP (DKK)	Forhandlet SAIP (DKK)	Rabatprocent ift. AIP
Jemperli	500 mg	1 stk.	42.427,75		

## Prisen er ikke betinget af Medicinrådets anbefaling.



## Aftaleforhold

Amgros har en aftale med leverandøren som gælder til den 30.09.2026.

### Konkurrencesituationen

Der er på nuværende tidspunkt ingen direkte konkurrence på området. I



#### Tabel 2: Sammenligning af lægemiddeludgifter pr. patient

Lægemiddel	Styrke	Paknings- størrelse	Dosering	Pris pr. pakning (SAIP, DKK)	Lægemiddeludgift pr. år (SAIP, DKK)
Jemperli	500 mg	1 stk.	500 mg IC hver 3. uge i 6 serier og 1000 mg IV hver 6. uge herefter		

## Status fra andre lande

Tabel 3: Status fra andre lande

Land	Status	Link
Norge	Anbefalet	Link til anbefaling
England	Anbefalet	Link til anbefaling

#### Konklusion



Application for the assessment of dostarlimab in combination with carboplatin and paclitaxel for treatment of adult patients with advanced or recurrent mismatch repair deficient (dMMR)/microsatellite instability-high (MSI-H) endometrial cancer

# Contact information

Contact information	
Company	GSK
Name	Martin Kirk Jensen
Title	Market Access Manager & Tender Manager
Phone number	+45 24 69 91 26
E-mail	Martin.k.jensen@gsk.com





# Table of contents

Conta	act information	1
Table	es and Figures	7
Abbre	eviations	12
1.	Regulatory information on the pharmaceutical	14
2.	Summary table	15
3.	The patient population, intervention, choice of comparator(s) and	
	relevant outcomes	17
3.1	The medical condition	
3.1.1	Endometrial cancer	
3.1.2	MMR/MSI Status	
3.1.3	Impact on patient health-related quality of life	
3.2	Patient population	
3.2.1	Epidemiology of endometrial cancer in DK and patient population releva for this application	nt 18
3.3	Current treatment options	
3.4	The intervention	
3.4.1	The intervention in relation to Danish clinical practice	
3.5	Choice of comparator(s)	
3.6	Cost-effectiveness of the comparator(s)	
3.7	Relevant efficacy outcomes	
3.7.1	Definition of efficacy outcomes included in the application	
3.7.1.	1 Validity of outcomes	
4.	Health economic analysis	27
4.1	Model structure	
4.2	Model features	
5.	Overview of literature	30
5.1	Literature used for the clinical assessment	
5.2	Literature used for the assessment of health-related quality of life	
5.3	Literature used for inputs for the health economic model	
6.	Efficacy of dostarlimab in adult patients with recurrent or advanced	
	dMMR/MSI-H endometrial cancer	37

6.1	Efficacy of dostarlimab compared to carboplatin and paclitaxel for the	
	treatment of adult patients with recurrent or advanced mismatch repair	
	deficient/microsatellite instability-high endometrial cancer	37
6.1.1	Relevant studies	37
6.1.2	Comparability of studies	39
6.1.2.2	1 Comparability of patients across studies	39
6.1.3	Comparability of the study population(s) with Danish patients eligible for	
	treatment	41
6.1.4	Efficacy – results per RUBY	41
6.1.4.3	1 Statistical Analysis	42
6.1.4.2	2 Primary endpoint: Progression-free survival (investigator-assessed)	43
6.1.4.3	3 Prespecified subgroup analysis: Overall survival dMMR/MSI-H	43
6.1.4.4	4 Secondary endpoint: Progressions-free survival (BICR)	44
6.1.4.5	5 Discontinuation in the dMMR/MSI-H population	45
6.1.4.6	5 Subsequent treatment for the dMMR/MSI-H population	46
7.	Comparative analyses of efficacy	47
7.1	Differences in definitions of outcomes between studies	47
7.2	Method of synthesis	47
7.3	Results from the comparative analysis	47
7.4	Efficacy – results per [outcome measure]	48
8.	Modelling of efficacy in the health economic analysis	48
	would have been and the mean of the mean o	
8.1	Presentation of efficacy data from the clinical documentation used in the	
8.1	Presentation of efficacy data from the clinical documentation used in the model	48
8.1 8.1.1	Presentation of efficacy data from the clinical documentation used in the model Extrapolation of efficacy data	48 48
8.1 8.1.1 8.1.1.2	Presentation of efficacy data from the clinical documentation used in the model Extrapolation of efficacy data	48 48 49
8.1 8.1.1 8.1.1.2 8.1.1.2	Presentation of efficacy data from the clinical documentation used in the model Extrapolation of efficacy data Extrapolation of PFS	48 48 49 53
8.1 8.1.1 8.1.1.2 8.1.1.2 8.1.1.3	Presentation of efficacy data from the clinical documentation used in the model Extrapolation of efficacy data	48 48 49 53 56
8.1.1 8.1.1.2 8.1.1.2 8.1.1.3 8.1.1.3 8.1.2	Presentation of efficacy data from the clinical documentation used in the model Extrapolation of efficacy data 1 Extrapolation of PFS 2 Extrapolation of OS 3 Extrapolation of TTD Calculation of transition probabilities	48 48 53 56 60
8.1 8.1.1 8.1.1.3 8.1.1.3 8.1.1.3 8.1.2 8.2	Presentation of efficacy data from the clinical documentation used in the model Extrapolation of efficacy data	48 48 53 56 60 60
8.1 8.1.1 8.1.1.2 8.1.1.2 8.1.1.2 8.1.2 8.2 8.3	Presentation of efficacy data from the clinical documentation used in the model Extrapolation of efficacy data	48 48 53 56 60 60 60
8.1.1 8.1.1.1 8.1.1.1 8.1.1.2 8.1.2 8.2 8.3 8.4	Presentation of efficacy data from the clinical documentation used in the model Extrapolation of efficacy data	48 48 53 56 60 60 61
8.1.1 8.1.1.2 8.1.1.2 8.1.1.2 8.1.1.2 8.1.2 8.2 8.2 8.3 8.4 8.5	Presentation of efficacy data from the clinical documentation used in the model Extrapolation of efficacy data	48 48 53 56 60 60 61
8.1.1 8.1.1.1 8.1.1.1 8.1.1.1 8.1.2 8.2 8.3 8.4 8.5	Presentation of efficacy data from the clinical documentation used in the model Extrapolation of efficacy data	48 48 53 56 60 60 61 61
8.1.1 8.1.1.2 8.1.1.2 8.1.1.2 8.1.2 8.2 8.3 8.4 8.5	Presentation of efficacy data from the clinical documentation used in the model Extrapolation of efficacy data	48 48 53 56 60 60 61 61
8.1 8.1.1 8.1.1.2 8.1.1.3 8.1.2 8.2 8.3 8.4 8.5 <b>9.</b>	Presentation of efficacy data from the clinical documentation used in the model Extrapolation of efficacy data	48 48 53 56 60 60 61 61 61
8.1.1 8.1.1.2 8.1.1.2 8.1.1.2 8.1.1.2 8.2 8.3 8.4 8.5 <b>9.</b> 9.1	Presentation of efficacy data from the clinical documentation used in the model	48 48 53 56 60 60 61 61 61 62
8.1.1 8.1.1.2 8.1.1.2 8.1.1.3 8.1.2 8.2 8.3 8.4 8.5 <b>9.</b> 9.1 9.2	Presentation of efficacy data from the clinical documentation used in the model Extrapolation of efficacy data	48 48 53 56 60 60 61 61 61 61 62 62
8.1.1 8.1.1.2 8.1.1.2 8.1.1.2 8.1.1.2 8.2 8.3 8.4 8.5 9.1 9.1 9.2	Presentation of efficacy data from the clinical documentation used in the model Extrapolation of efficacy data	48 48 53 56 60 60 61 61 61 61 61 62 62 62
8.1 8.1.1 8.1.1.2 8.1.1.2 8.1.1.3 8.1.2 8.2 8.3 8.4 8.5 9. 9.1 9.2 9.1 9.2 10.	Presentation of efficacy data from the clinical documentation used in the model Extrapolation of efficacy data	48 48 53 56 60 60 61 61 61 61 61 62 62 62
8.1.1 8.1.1.2 8.1.1.2 8.1.1.2 8.1.1.2 8.2 8.3 8.4 8.5 9.1 9.1 9.2 10. 10.1	Presentation of efficacy data from the clinical documentation used in the model Extrapolation of efficacy data 1 Extrapolation of PFS	48 48 53 56 60 61 61 61 61 61 61 62 62 62 62 62
8.1.1 8.1.1.2 8.1.1.2 8.1.1.2 8.1.1.2 8.1.1.2 8.2 8.3 8.4 8.5 9.1 9.1 9.2 9.1 9.2 10.1 10.1.1	Presentation of efficacy data from the clinical documentation used in the model Extrapolation of efficacy data Extrapolation of PFS	48 48 53 56 60 60 61 61 61 61 61 61 62 62 66 69 69 69
8.1 8.1.1 8.1.1.2 8.1.1.2 8.1.1.3 8.1.2 8.2 8.3 8.4 8.5 9. 9.1 9.2 10. 10.1 10.1.1 10.1.2	Presentation of efficacy data from the clinical documentation used in the model Extrapolation of efficacy data	48 48 53 56 60 60 61 61 61 61 61 61 62 62 62 69 69 

10.2	Health state utility values (HSUVs) used in the health economic model	78
10.2.1	. HSUV calculation	78
10.2.1	.1Mapping	78
10.2.2	Disutility calculation	78
10.2.3	HSUV results	79
10.3	Presentation of the health state utility values measured in other trials than	
	the clinical trials forming the basis for relative efficacy	80
10.3.1	. Study design	80
10.3.2	Data collection	80
10.3.3	B HRQoL Results	80
10.3.4	HSUV and disutility results	80
11.	Resource use and associated costs	81
11 1	Medicine costs – intervention and comparator	
11.1	Medicine costs – co-administration	01
11.3	Administration costs	82
11.4	Disease management costs	83
11.5	Costs associated with management of adverse events	84
11.6	Subsequent treatment costs	85
11.7	Patient costs	87
11.8	Other costs (e.g. costs for home care nurses, out-patient rehabilitation and	
	palliative care cost)	87
12.	Results	87
<b>12.</b> 12.1	Results Base case overview	<b> 87</b> 87
<b>12.</b> 12.1 12.1.1	Results Base case overview Base case results	<b> 87</b> 87 88
<b>12.</b> 12.1 12.1.1 12.2	Results Base case overview Base case results Sensitivity analyses	<b> 87</b> 87 88 89
<b>12.</b> 12.1 12.1.1 12.2 12.2.1	Results	<b> 87</b> 87 88 89 90
<b>12.</b> 12.1 12.1.1 12.2 12.2.1 12.2.2	Results Base case overview Base case results Sensitivity analyses Deterministic sensitivity analyses Probabilistic sensitivity analyses	87 87 88 89 90 91
<b>12.</b> 12.1 12.1.1 12.2 12.2.1 12.2.2	Results Base case overview Base case results Sensitivity analyses Deterministic sensitivity analyses Probabilistic sensitivity analyses	87 87 88 89 90 91
<ol> <li>12.1</li> <li>12.1.1</li> <li>12.2</li> <li>12.2.1</li> <li>12.2.2</li> <li>13.</li> </ol>	Results         Base case overview         Base case results         Sensitivity analyses         Deterministic sensitivity analyses         Probabilistic sensitivity analyses         Budget impact analysis	87 87 88 89 90 91 93
<ol> <li>12.</li> <li>12.1</li> <li>12.1.1</li> <li>12.2.1</li> <li>12.2.2</li> <li>13.</li> <li>13.1</li> </ol>	Results         Base case overview         Base case results         Sensitivity analyses         Deterministic sensitivity analyses         Probabilistic sensitivity analyses         Budget impact analysis         Number of patients (including assumptions of market share)	87 87 88 90 91 93
<ol> <li>12.</li> <li>12.1.1</li> <li>12.2.1</li> <li>12.2.2</li> <li>12.2.2</li> <li>13.1</li> <li>13.2</li> </ol>	Results         Base case overview         Base case results         Sensitivity analyses         Deterministic sensitivity analyses         Probabilistic sensitivity analyses         Budget impact analysis         Number of patients (including assumptions of market share)         Budget impact	87 87 88 90 91 91 93 94
<ol> <li>12.</li> <li>12.1</li> <li>12.2.1</li> <li>12.2.1</li> <li>12.2.2</li> <li>13.</li> <li>13.1</li> <li>13.2</li> <li>14.</li> </ol>	Results         Base case overview         Base case results         Sensitivity analyses         Deterministic sensitivity analyses         Probabilistic sensitivity analyses         Budget impact analysis         Number of patients (including assumptions of market share)         Budget impact	87 87 88 90 91 93 93 94
<ol> <li>12.</li> <li>12.1</li> <li>12.1.1</li> <li>12.2.1</li> <li>12.2.2</li> <li>13.</li> <li>13.1</li> <li>13.2</li> <li>14.</li> </ol>	Results         Base case overview         Base case results         Sensitivity analyses         Deterministic sensitivity analyses         Probabilistic sensitivity analyses         Budget impact analysis         Number of patients (including assumptions of market share)         Budget impact         List of experts	87 87 88 90 91 93 93 94 95
<ol> <li>12.</li> <li>12.1</li> <li>12.1.1</li> <li>12.2.1</li> <li>12.2.2</li> <li>13.</li> <li>13.1</li> <li>13.2</li> <li>14.</li> <li>15.</li> </ol>	Results         Base case overview         Base case results         Sensitivity analyses         Deterministic sensitivity analyses         Probabilistic sensitivity analyses         Budget impact analysis         Number of patients (including assumptions of market share)         Budget impact         List of experts         References	87 87 88 90 91 93 93 94 95 96
<ol> <li>12.</li> <li>12.1</li> <li>12.1.1</li> <li>12.2.1</li> <li>12.2.2</li> <li>13.</li> <li>13.1</li> <li>13.2</li> <li>14.</li> <li>15.</li> <li>Apper</li> </ol>	Results         Base case overview         Base case results         Sensitivity analyses         Deterministic sensitivity analyses         Probabilistic sensitivity analyses         Budget impact analysis         Number of patients (including assumptions of market share)         Budget impact         List of experts         References         mdix A. Main characteristics of studies included	87 87 88 90 91 93 93 94 95 96 . 100
<ol> <li>12.1</li> <li>12.1.1</li> <li>12.2.1</li> <li>12.2.2</li> <li>13.1</li> <li>13.2</li> <li>14.</li> <li>15.</li> <li>Apper</li> </ol>	Results         Base case overview         Base case results         Sensitivity analyses         Deterministic sensitivity analyses         Probabilistic sensitivity analyses         Budget impact analysis         Number of patients (including assumptions of market share)         Budget impact         List of experts         References         mdix A. Main characteristics of studies included	87 87 88 90 91 93 93 94 95 96 . 100
<ol> <li>12.1</li> <li>12.1.1</li> <li>12.2.1</li> <li>12.2.2</li> <li>13.</li> <li>13.1</li> <li>13.2</li> <li>14.</li> <li>15.</li> <li>Apper</li> </ol>	Results         Base case overview         Base case results         Sensitivity analyses         Deterministic sensitivity analyses         Probabilistic sensitivity analyses         Budget impact analysis         Number of patients (including assumptions of market share)         Budget impact         List of experts         References         ndix A. Main characteristics of studies included         ndix B. Efficacy results per study	87 87 88 90 91 93 93 94 95 96 . 100 . 108
<ol> <li>12.1</li> <li>12.1.1</li> <li>12.2.1</li> <li>12.2.2</li> <li>13.</li> <li>13.1</li> <li>13.2</li> <li>14.</li> <li>15.</li> <li>Apper</li> <li>Apper</li> </ol>	Results         Base case overview         Base case results         Sensitivity analyses         Deterministic sensitivity analyses         Probabilistic sensitivity analyses         Budget impact analysis         Number of patients (including assumptions of market share)         Budget impact         List of experts         References         ndix A. Main characteristics of studies included         ndix B. Efficacy results per study         mdix C. Comparative analysis of efficacy	87 87 89 90 91 93 93 94 95 96 . 100 . 108 . 115
<ol> <li>12.</li> <li>12.1.</li> <li>12.2.</li> <li>12.2.1</li> <li>12.2.2</li> <li>13.</li> <li>13.1</li> <li>13.2</li> <li>14.</li> <li>15.</li> <li>Apper</li> <li>Apper</li> </ol>	Results         Base case overview         Base case results         Sensitivity analyses         Deterministic sensitivity analyses         Probabilistic sensitivity analyses         Budget impact analysis         Number of patients (including assumptions of market share)         Budget impact         List of experts         References         ndix A. Main characteristics of studies included         ndix B. Efficacy results per study         mdix C. Comparative analysis of efficacy	87 87 88 90 91 93 93 93 93 93 93 93 93 93 93 93 93 93 93 93 93 94 95 95 100 . 108 . 115



1.1.1. Search strategies	150
1.1.2. Systematic selection of studies	150
1.1.3. Quality assessment	151
1.1.4. Unpublished data	151
Appendix I. Literature searches for health-related quality of life	152
1.1. Health-related quality-of-life search	152
1.1.1. Search strategies	152
1.1.2. Quality assessment and generalizability of estimates	153
1.1.3. Unpublished data	153
Appendix J. Literature searches for input to the health economic model	154
1.2. External literature for input to the health economic model	154
1.2.1. Ex. Systematic search for []	154
1.2.2. Ex. Targeted literature search for [estimates]	154



# Tables and Figures

Table 1: Incidence and prevalence in the past 5 years	19
Table 2: Estimated number of patients eligible for treatment, based on 2 years	
treatment	20
Table 3: Efficacy outcome measures relevant for the application	25
Table 4: Features of the economic model	28
Table 5: Relevant literature included in the assessment of efficacy and safety	31
Table 6: Relevant literature included for (documentation of) health-related quality	22
Table 7: Relevant literature used for input to the health economic model	52 21
Table 9: Overview of study design for the PLIPY 1 trial	54
Table 0: Baseline characteristics of nations in studies included for the	50
comparative analysis of efficacy and safety	20
Table 10: Characteristics in the relevant Danish population and in the health	55
economic model	/11
Table 11: Results from the comparative analysis of dostarlimah plus carbonlatin-	41
naclitaxel vs. placebo plus carbonlatin paclitaxel for the dMMR/MSLH patient	
nonulation	47
Table 12: Summary of assumptions associated with extrapolation of PES	50
Table 13: Transitions in the health economic model	60
	60
	01
	61
	63
Table 17: Serious events occurring in >2% of patients in either group. The median	
duration of follow-up was 25.4 months (range, 19.2 to 37.8) in the overall	
population	64
	65
Table 19: Adverse events in second-line subsequent treatment used in the health	
economic model	67
Table 20: Overview of included HRQoL instrument	69
	71
	76
Table 23: Overview of health state utility values [and disutilities]	79
Table 24: Overview of health state utility values [and disutilities]	
Table 35: Overview of literature based bealth state utility values	80
Table 25. Overview of interature-based fielding state utility values	80 80
Table 26: Medicine costs used in the model	80 80 81
Table 25: Overview of interactive-based field if state utility values         Table 26: Medicine costs used in the model         Table 27: Administration costs used in the model	80 80 81 83
Table 25: Overview of interactive-based health state utility values Table 26: Medicine costs used in the model Table 27: Administration costs used in the model Table 28: Disease management costs used in the model	80 80 81 83 83
Table 25: Overview of interactive-based inearth state utility values         Table 26: Medicine costs used in the model         Table 27: Administration costs used in the model         Table 28: Disease management costs used in the model         Table 29: Cost associated with management of adverse events	80 80 81 83 83 84

Table 31: Patient costs used in the model	87
Table 32: Base case overview	88
Table 33: Base case results, discounted estimates	89
	90
Table 35: Number of new patients expected to be treated over the next five-year	
period if the medicine is introduced (adjusted for market share)	93
Table 36: Expected budget impact (in DKK) of recommending dostarlimab plus CP	
for the indication	94
Table 37: Main characteristics of RUBY1	00
	.08
Table 39: Comparative analysis of studies comparing [intervention] to	
[comparator] for patients with [indication]	15
	37
Table 41 Bibliographic databases included in the literature search1	50
Table 42 Other sources included in the literature search	50
Table 43 Conference material included in the literature search1	50
Table 44 of search strategy table for [name of database]1	50
Table 45 Inclusion and exclusion criteria used for assessment of studies1	50
Table 46 Overview of study design for studies included in the technology	
assessment 1	51
Table 47: Bibliographic databases included in the literature search	52
Table 48: Other sources included in the literature search 1	52
Table 49: Conference material included in the literature search	52
Table 50: Search strategy for MEDLINE1	52
Table 51: Sources included in the search 1	54
Table 52: Sources included in the targeted literature search1	54

	46
Table - II: PSM model input	48
Table - III: Summary of assumptions associated with extrapolation of OS	54
Table - IV: Summary of assumptions associated with extrapolation of TTD	57
Table - V: Base-case second line subsequent treatment regimens	60
Error! Bookmark not d	efined.
Table - VII: Health state resource use	83
Table - VIII: PSA results for dostarlimab + CP versus CP for the dMMR/MSI-H	
population	92
Table - IX: Response rates for dMMR/MSI-H and overall population in RUBY	110
	111
	118
Table - XII: AIC and BIC statistical goodness-of-fit data for PFS by INV –	
dMMR/MSI-H data set (dependent models) IA1 datacut	121





Figure 1: Overview of treatment algorithm for patients with primary advanced or	
recurrent endometrial cancer	20
Figure 2: Overview of suggested treatment algorithm for patients with primary	
advanced or recurrent endometrial cancer	22
Figure 3: Schematic representation of the PSM	28
Figure 4: Multiplicity Control Strategy	42
Figure 5: Kaplan-Meier estimates of PFS in the dMMR/MSI-H population	
(investigator-assessed)	43
Figure 6: Kaplan-Meier estimates of OS in the dMMR/MSI-H population	44

Error! Bookmark not	defined.
	Error!





Error! Bookmark not defined.
Error! Bookmark
Error! Bookmark
not defined.
Error! Bookmark not defined.
Error! Bookmark not defined.
Error! Bookmark not defined.
Error! Bookmark not defined.
Bookmark not defined.
Bookmark not defined.
Error! Bookmark
not defined.
Error! Bookmark not defined.
Error! Bookmark not defined.
Error! Bookmark not defined.
Error! Bookmark not defined.
Error! Bookmark not defined.
Error! Bookmark not defined.
Error! Bookmark
not defined.
Error! Bookmark

not defined.







# Abbreviations

AE	Adverse event
ALT	Alanine aminotransferase
AUC	Area under the concentration-time curve
BICR	Blinded Independent Central Review
BMI	Body mass index
BSA	Body surface area
CEA	Cost effectiveness analysis
CI	Confidence interval
СР	Carboplatin-paclitaxel
CR	Complete response
CTCAE v4.03	Common Terminology Criteria for Adverse Events version 4.03
CUA	Cost-Utility Analysis
D	Death from any course
DGCG	Danish Gynaecological Cancer Group
DMC	Danish Medicines Council
dMMR	Mismatch repair deficient
DOR	Duration of response
DSU	Decision Support Unit
EC	Endometrial cancer
ECG	Electrocardiogram
ECOG PS	Eastern Cooperative Oncology Group performance status
EMA	European Medicines Agency
	European Organisation for Research and Treatment of Cancer Quality of Life
EURIC-QLQ	Questionnaire
EOT	End of Treatment
FCR	Fear of cancer recurrence
FIGO	International Federation of Gynaecology and Obstetrics
GOG	Gynaecologic Oncology Group
GVD	Global value dossier
HR	Hazard Ratio
HRQoL	Health-related quality of life
HSUV	Health state utility value
HTA	Health technology assessment
IA	Interim analysis
ICER	Incremental cost-effectiveness ratio
ITT	Intention-to-treat
KM	Kaplan Meier
MAIC	Matching adjusted indirect comparison
MMR	Mismatch repair
MMRp	Mismatch repair proficient
MSI-H	Microsatellite instability high
NICE	The National Institute for Health and Care Excellence
ORR	Objective response rate
OS	Overall survival



OWSA	One-way sensitivity analysis
PD	Progressed Disease
PD-1	Programmed cell death receptor-1
PD-L1	Programmed cell death ligand-1
PFD	Progression-free disease
PFS	Progression-free survival
РК	Pharmacokinetic
PLD	Patient-level data
PR	Partial response
PRO	Patient-reported outcomes
PSM	Partitioned survival model
Q3W	Every three weeks
Q6W	Every six weeks
QOL	Quality of life
RECIST v1.1	Response Evaluation Criteria in Solid Tumours version 1.1
SAE	Serious Adverse Event
SD	Stable disease
TEAE	Treatment-emergent adverse event
TTD	Time to discontinuation
US	United States
W	Weeks

# 1. Regulatory information on the pharmaceutical

Overview of the pharmaceutical		
Proprietary name	Jemperli	
Generic name	Dostarlimab	
Therapeutic indication as defined by EMA	JEMPERLI is indicated in combination with carboplatin and paclitaxel (CP) for the treatment of adult patients with mismatch repair deficient (dMMR)/ microsatellite instability high (MSI-H) primary advanced or recurrent endometrial cancer (EC) and who are candidates for systemic therapy (1).	
Marketing authorization	GSK Denmark	
holder in Denmark	Delta Park 37, 2665 Vallensbæk Strand	
ATC code	L01XC40	
Combination therapy and/or co-medication	Carboplatin area under the concentration-time curve, 5 mg per millilitre per minute (AUC 5) and paclitaxel 175 mg per square me- ter of body-surface area	
Date of EC approval	7 <sup>th</sup> December 2023	
Has the pharmaceutical received a conditional marketing authorization?	No	
Accelerated assessment in the European Medicines Agency (EMA)	Νο	
Orphan drug designation (include date)	No	
Other therapeutic indications approved by EMA	Dostarlimab is indicated as monotherapy for the treatment of adult patients with recurrent or advanced dMMR/MSI-H endome- trial cancer that has progressed on or following prior treatment with a platinum-containing regimen (1).	
Other indications that have been evaluated by the DMC (yes/no)	Yes	
Dispensing group	BEGR/NBS	

#### Overview of the pharmaceutical

Packaging – types, sizes/number of units and concentrations 1 -piece vial concentrate for solution for infusion. One vial of 10 mL concentrate for solution for infusion contains 500 mg of dostarlimab.

Each mL of concentrate for solution for infusion contains 50 mg of dostarlimab

# 2. Summary table

Summary	
Therapeutic indication relevant for the assessment	Dostarlimab is indicated in combination with carboplatin and paclitaxel for the treatment of adult patients with dMMR/MSI-H primary advanced or recurrent endometrial can- cer and who are candidates for systemic therapy (1).
Dosage regiment and administration:	One vial of 10 mL solution for infusion contains 500 mg of dostarlimab. Each mL of solution for infusion contains 50 mg of dostarlimab. 500 mg (1 vial) Q3W for 4 cycles, then 1000mg (2 vials) Q6W until disease progression
Choice of comparator	Carboplatin area under the concentration-time curve, 5 mg per millilitre per minute (AUC 5) and paclitaxel 175 mg per square meter of body-surface area
Prognosis with current treatment (comparator)	If the disease is detected at an early stage, it is considered sur- gically curable with a 5-year survival rate of around 80-85%. Lo- cal advanced or metastatic endometrial cancer (collectively re- ferred to as advanced endometrial cancer) has a poorer prog- nosis, with 5-year survival rates of 49% and 28%, respectively, for stages III and IV.
Type of evidence for the clinical evaluation	Head-to-head study
Most important efficacy endpoints (Difference/gain compared to comparator)	Patients in the dostarlimab plus CP group had a statistically sig- nificant 72% reduction in risk of progression or death compared with the placebo plus CP group (HR: 0.28; 95% CI: 0.16, 0.50; p<0.001)
	Patients in the dostarlimab plus CP group had a 70% reduction in risk of death compared with the placebo plus CP group (HR 0.30; 95% CI: 0.13, 0.70; nominal p=0.0016
Most important serious adverse events for the intervention and comparator	The incidence of grade 3 or higher adverse events and serious adverse events that occurred or worsened during treatment were each approximately 10 percentage points higher in the

Summary		
	dostarlimab group than in the placebo group (adverse events, 70.5% vs. 59.8%; serious adverse events, 37.8% vs. 27.6%)	
Impact on health-related quality of life	Clinical documentation: EQ-5D-5L Health economic model: Better than comparator	
Type of economic analysis that is submitted	Cost-utility analysis Partitioned survival model	
Data sources used to model the clinical effects	Ruby trial, a phase III RSC (NCT03981796)	
Data sources used to model the health-related quality of life	Ruby trial, a phase III RSC (NCT03981796)	
Life years gained		
QALYs gained		
Incremental costs	810,304 DKK	
ICER (DKK/QALY)		
Uncertainty associated with the ICER estimate	<ul> <li>Top five parameters with the largest overall impact:</li> <li>Cost per unit (DKK) dostarlimab plus CP</li> <li>Time horizon</li> <li>Dostarlimab+CP completion rate per cycle (cycle 16)</li> <li>OS HR</li> <li>Total cost for average total treatment duration: Dostarlimab</li> </ul>	
Number of eligible patients in Denmark	Incidence: 30 new patients per year Prevalence: N/A	
Budget impact (in year 5)	22.06 million	



## 3.1 The medical condition

#### 3.1.1 Endometrial cancer

Uterine cancer is the 5th most common cancer among women in Denmark, and the most frequent form of gynaecological cancer. The most common form of uterine cancer is cancer of the lining of the uterus (endometrial cancer) (2). Endometrial cancer develops when genomic alterations occur in cells, causing errors in cell proliferation and apoptosis that lead to excessive tissue growth and tumour formation (3).

The most common symptom associated with endometrial cancer is abnormal vaginal bleeding, which is present in approximately 70% to 90% of patients (4) (5). This includes a change in menstrual cycles, bleeding between menstrual cycles, or bleeding after menopause. Non-bloody abnormal vaginal discharge may also occur (4) (6). In advanced stages of endometrial cancer, other symptoms may be present, including pelvic pain, often during urination or intercourse, back pain, the presence of a mass, or unintentional weight loss (2) (5) (6). Some patients will experience relapse of the disease within a few years of completing primary treatment. This is commonly characterized as incurable endometrial cancer with a median survival of about 12 months (7). In Denmark, approx. 100 patients are newly diagnosed with advanced endometrial cancer (8) and approx. 30 patients with relapsing endometrial cancer every year (8).

#### 3.1.2 MMR/MSI Status

The Mismatch repair (MMR) system is a cellular system that, among other things, repairs errors in DNA strands (9). An inherited or somatic mutation in one of the genes MLH1, MSH2, MSH6 or PMS2 can cause dMMR. In tissues with dMMR, mutations accumulate. This occurs particularly in the so-called microsatellite regions of DNA, whereby dMMR can often be identified by a high degree of instability in these DNA regions (MSI-H/Mi-crosatellite Instability-High) (9). Functional defects in the MMR system in tumour tissue

cause an accumulation of so-called mutation-associated neoantigens that can be recognized by the immune system (10). Neoantigens are tumour-specific and thus also patient-specific. Thereby, an active immune response plays an important role in fighting dMMR/MSI-H tumours, providing a rationale for immunotherapy for patients with these tumours. dMMR/MSI-H is most often caused by somatic changes but can also be hereditary (Lynch syndrome) (11).

According to the literature, approximately 22-30% of endometrial cancer cases are dMMR/MSI-H, regardless of disease stage (12) (13). However, the scientific committee estimates that the proportion is somewhat lower in patients with advanced or recurrent endometrial cancer (14). No studies elucidate this.

#### 3.1.3 Impact on patient health-related quality of life

Primary advanced or recurrent endometrial cancer is associated with a range of debilitating symptoms, resulting in deteriorations in physical functioning and health-related quality of life (HRQoL). Women with endometrial cancer identify pain, fatigue, emotional functioning, and social functioning as key areas to be monitored following diagnosis (15). Maintaining and improving QoL are important considerations for endometrial cancer and require consideration of potential longer-term impacts of the disease such as pain and social and sexual functioning (15).

Fear of cancer recurrence (FCR) is also a widely reported issue that carries significant burden and affects the QoL of patients (16). Recurrence has a detrimental impact on QoL in patients with endometrial cancer, leading to more anxiety and depression, lower satisfaction with the care received after diagnosis of recurrence, and perceptions of a more threatening illness (17). This highlights the importance of effective treatment that reduce the symptom burden and risk of recurrence of endometrial cancer (16).

## 3.2 Patient population

# **3.2.1** Epidemiology of endometrial cancer in DK and patient population relevant for this application

Around 800 women are diagnosed with uterine cancer every year, with more than 90% being cancer of the lining of the uterus (endometrial cancer) (8) (18). The disease typically affects older women (median age 63 years) (19), and almost 11,000 patients in Denmark are alive after being diagnosed (18).

Endometrial cancer is diagnosed early in approximately 80% of cases due to obvious symptoms (20). If the disease is detected at an early stage, it is considered surgically curable with a 5-year survival rate of around 80-85%. Locally advanced or metastatic endometrial cancer has a poorer prognosis, with 5-year survival rates of 49% and 28% respectively for stage II and IV (20).

Some patients will experience relapse of the disease within a few years after completing primary treatment. This is characterized as incurable endometrial cancer with a median survival of around 12 months (21). In Denmark the incidence of patients with newly diagnosed advanced endometrial cancer is 100 patients per year (8) and furthermore 30 patients with relapsing endometrial cancer (8), of these 22-30% are dMMR/MSI-H (12) (13). Based on these numbers approximately 30 new patients per year are expected to be candidates for treatment with dostarlimab in combination with paclitaxel and carboplatin (5).

It is unknown to what extent MMR/MSI status affects the patient's prognosis (22). However, there are a number of factors of important prognostic significance. These include histology (endometrioid/serous or clear-cell adenocarcinoma or carcinosarcoma), molecular biological factors (especially POLE and p53) and hormone receptor positivity (11) (23).

In Table 1 the incidence and prevalence of endometrial cancer is presented. The subgroup of the population relevant to this application is the dMMR/MSI-H population. There is no official data on the incidence and prevalence of the dMMR/MSI-H populations, however the estimated numbers in Table 2 are confirmed by a clinical expert.

Year	2017	2018	2019	2020	2021
Incidence in Denmark	805	795	834	819	830
Prevalence in Denmark <sup>a</sup>	10 954	11 080	11 240	11 365	11 481
			1-year prev- alence	3-year prev- alence	5-year prev- alence
Clabel requeleres	N		1-year prev- alence 343.524	<b>3-year prev-</b> alence 929.672	5-year prev- alence 1.415.213

#### Table 1: Incidence and prevalence in the past 5 years

<sup>a</sup> Source: Adapted from Association of Nordic Cancer Registries (NORDCAN data 2023) (18)

<sup>b</sup> Source: Adapted from Global Cancer Observatory (GLOBOCAN data 2020) (24)

<sup>c</sup> Global estimates were based on 185 countries across the world.

#### Table 2: Estimated number of patients eligible for treatment, based on 2 years treatment

Year	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5
Number of patients in Denmark who are eligible for treatment in the coming years	30	60	60	60	60

Source: Clinical expert

## 3.3 Current treatment options

The treatment of endometrial cancer is described in clinical guidelines from the Danish Gynaecological Cancer Group (DGCG) (2). Most patients with early-stage endometrial cancer are treated with curative surgery (8) (15). The treatment algorithm hereafter for primary advanced or recurrent endometrial cancer is illustrated in

Figure 1 (11).

According to the guideline from DGCG, advanced and recurrent endometrial cancer can be treated with surgery and/or radiotherapy, supplemented with carboplatin and paclitaxel for up to 6 cycles or Dostarlimab plus CP, depending on the MMR/MSI status (2). The aim of the treatment is to prolong survival by limiting further disease progression. The DGCG guidelines were updated in October 2023 to include dostarlimab as a 1st line treatment, depending on MMR/MSI status, in combination with carboplatin and paclitaxel. Until then the standard treatment choice for patients with primary disseminated endometrial cancer was carboplatin plus paclitaxel (2). According to clinical expert patients with dMMR/MSI-H EC in first line are already being treated with dostarlimab plus CP for up to two years based on individual application to the regional drug committees.



 

 Newly diagnosed endometrial cancer, stadium III-IV. 100 patients
 Recurrent endometrial cancer after surgery. 30 patients

 Disseminated advanced or recurrent endometrial cancer. 130 patients
 Disseminated advanced or recurrent endometrial cancer. 130 patients

 1<sup>st</sup> line treatment
 Dostarlimab 34 patients (dMMR)
 Carboplatin + paclitaxel 96 patients (MMRp)
 No recurrence, potentially cured.

 Progression, good performance status
 Progression with no further treatment options

 2<sup>rd</sup> line treatment
 Platinum-free interval < 6 months</td>
 Symptom-relieving treatment

Figure 1: Overview of treatment algorithm for patients with primary advanced or recurrent endometrial cancer

**Source:** Created by GSK based on DMC recommendation of dostarlimab 2L (11) and DGCG updated guidelines (2)

# 3.4 The intervention

Dostarlimab is a monoclonal antibody that binds to the receptor, programmed cell death-1 (PD-1), thereby inhibiting its binding to the ligands programmed cell death-ligand-1 and -2 (PD-L1 and -2). The PD-1 receptor is present on the surface of immune cells, and when the receptor is activated via PD-L1 binding it causes a negative feedback response that inhibits T cell-mediated cell death (25). PD-L1 is overexpressed on many tumour cells, which protects the tumour cells from the immune system response. By breaking the PD-L1/PD-1 interaction in tumour cells, dostarlimab may counteract this protection, increasing T cell-mediated cell death in tumours with many mutation-associated neoantigens (12).

Overview of intervention	
Therapeutic indication relevant for the assessment	Treatment of adult patients with advanced or recurrent dMMR/ MSI-H endometrial cancer in combination with paclitaxel and carboplatin (1)
Method of administration	IV infusion over 30 minutes
Dosing	500 mg (1 vial) Q3W for 6 cycles, then 1000mg (2 vials) Q6W
Dosing in the health economic model (including relative dose intensity)	500 mg (1 vial) Q3W for 6 cycles, then 1000mg (2 vials) Q6W

Overview of intervention	
Should the pharmaceutical be administered with other medicines?	Νο
Treatment duration / criteria for end of treatment	Up to 3 years or until disease progression
Necessary monitoring, both during administration and during the treatment period	Νο
Need for diagnostics or other tests (e.g. companion diagnostics). How are these included in the model?	dMMR or MSI-H test is needed. These tests are already stand- ard of care in Danish clinical practice
Package size(s)	1-piece concentrated liquid solution for infusion. One vial of 10 mL solution for infusion contains 500 mg of dostarlimab. Each mL of solution for infusion contains 50 mg of dostarlimab.

#### 3.4.1 The intervention in relation to Danish clinical practice

As investigated in the RUBY trial, dostarlimab is an add on to existing standard treatment (carboplatin and paclitaxel for 6 cycles) for patients with dMMR/MSI-H EC in the 1<sup>st</sup> line setting. This is already reflected in the newly updated clinical guideline from DGCG. Dostarlimab is already approved by the DMC in the 2<sup>nd</sup> line setting (

Figure 1). Introducing dostarlimab in 1<sup>st</sup> line treatment will over time replace the current use in 2<sup>nd</sup> line.



Figure 2: Overview of suggested treatment algorithm for patients with primary advanced or recurrent endometrial cancer



**Source**: Created by GSK based on DMC recommendation of dostarlimab 2L (11) and DGCG updated guidelines (2)

The biomarker testing of dMMR/MSI-H is being performed at the time of diagnosis in Danish clinical practice (2).

# 3.5 Choice of comparator(s)

The Danish standard treatment option for patients with primary advanced or first recurrent disease who have low potential for cure by surgery alone was, until recently, platinum-containing combination chemotherapy (2). Prior combinations evaluated in the advanced/recurrent endometrial cancer population include docetaxel + carboplatin, doxorubicin + cisplatin, and doxorubicin + cisplatin + paclitaxel (7) (9) (10) (26).

A landmark phase 3 open-label trial published results in 2012 (with an updated publication in 2020) showing that the carboplatin + paclitaxel regimen was associated with an ORR of ~50 % among patients with primary advanced/first recurrent endometrial cancer (27) (28). This trial also reported that carboplatin + paclitaxel demonstrated comparable efficacy to the triplet paclitaxel + doxorubicin + cisplatin regimen based on OS and progression-free survival (PFS) outcomes and was associated with a more favourable toxicity profile (27). Response rates to carboplatin + paclitaxel range from 50% to 60% in clinical studies of patients with primary advanced/first recurrent endometrial cancer (27) (28) (29).

As carboplatin + paclitaxel is also a common adjuvant therapy for newly diagnosed, highrisk patients, the concept of re-treatment with the same combination in recurrent disease has been explored, albeit minimally. While those who are considered platinum-resistant (disease recurs ≤6 months from the last platinum-containing chemotherapy) may not benefit from re-treatment, data have indicated that those who are platinum-sensitive (disease recurs >6 months from the last platinum containing chemotherapy) demonstrate favourable response rates (50%) to the platinum containing regimen after recurrence (14).

The RUBY trial compares dostarlimab plus CP with placebo plus CP, as CP has been considered SOC for many years in the treatment of EC patients. Therefore, since the change in DGCG clinical guidelines were made based on the data presented in this application, the comparator presented will be carboplatin + paclitaxel in combination (2) (30).

Overview of comparator	
Generic name	Carboplatin
ATC code	L01XA02
Mechanism of action	After intracellular activation, the molecule acquires alkylating properties, causing linkage to, and possibly cross-linking of the guanine bases in the DNA double strand, inhibiting cell di- vision.
Method of administration	Solution for IV infusion.
Dosing	5 mg per millilitre per minute (AUC 5).
Dosing in the health economic model (including relative dose intensity)	N/A
Should the pharmaceutical be administered with other medicines?	The product must be diluted prior to infusion with a dextrose solution or a sodium chloride solution to concentrations as low as 0.5 mg/ml.
Treatment duration/ criteria for end of treatment	Carboplatin was administered in the first 6 cycles of study treatment in RUBY.
Need for diagnostics or other tests (i.e. companion diagnos- tics)	No
Package size(s)	Available as vials of 15 ml or 45 ml concentrate for solution, 10 mg/ml.

Overview of comparator	
Generic name	Paclitaxel

Overview of comparator	
ATC code	L01CD01
Mechanism of action	Antimitotic, which affects the functioning of microtubules, which is essential for the cell's necessary functions in inter- phase and mitosis.
Method of administration	Available as sterile powder or solution for IV infusion
Dosing	175 mg per square meter of body-surface area
Dosing in the health economic model (including relative dose intensity)	N/A
Should the pharmaceutical be administered with other medicines?	Paclitaxel as sterile powder must be reconstituted using a so- dium chloride solution, a lactated Ringer's solution, or an ace- tated Ringer's solution suitable for infusion.
	Paclitaxel as a solution for IV infusion must be diluted prior to infusion with a dextrose solution or a sodium chloride solution, or a mix of the two, to a concentration of 0.3-1.2 mg/ml.
Treatment duration/ criteria for end of treatment	Paclitaxel was administered in the first 6 cycles of study treat- ment in RUBY.
Need for diagnostics or other tests (i.e. companion diagnos- tics)	No
Package size(s)	Available as vials of 16.7 ml, 25 ml, 50 ml concentrate for so- lution, 6 mg/ml. Also available as 20 ml or 100 mg sterile pow- der, 5 mg/ml.

# 3.6 Cost-effectiveness of the comparator(s)

The comparator (CP) consists of two well-known generic compounds. They have been used to treat endometrial and ovarian cancer for the past 20+ years. CP has therefore not been evaluated by the DMC. However, CP has been used as a comparator in the assessment of Dostarlimab in second line and is also the current standard of care in 1<sup>st</sup> line endometrial cancer.



# 3.7 Relevant efficacy outcomes

#### 3.7.1 Definition of efficacy outcomes included in the application

Table 3 presents the outcome measures included in the present application and the definitions and method of measurement for each outcome. The rationale for including each outcome and the validity of the outcomes is presented later in this section.

Outcome measure	Time point*	Definition	How was the measure investigated/method of data collection
Progression-free survival (PFS), dMMR/MSI-H population PFS rate at 24 months	Median duration of follow- up: 24.8 months	The time from the date of randomization to the earliest date of radiographic assess- ment of PD or death by any cause in the absence of PD, whichever occurred first per RECIST v.1.1	Initial tumour imaging at screening was performed within 28 days of the first dose of study intervention. Radio- graphic evaluations to assess the extent of disease was con- ducted Q6W (±7 days) until Week 25, followed by Q9W (±7 days) until Week 52. Subse- quent tumour imaging was performed every 12 weeks (±7 days) until radiographic PD is documented by Investigator assessment per RECIST v1.1 followed by one additional im- aging assessment 4-6 weeks later, or subsequent anti- cancer therapy was started, whichever occurs first. There- after, scans may be performed per standard of care.
Overall survival (OS), dMMR/MSI- H population OS rate at 24 months	Median duration of follow- up: 24.8 months	OS is defined as the time from randomization to death from any cause.	Time measured from randomi- zation until death from any cause.

Table 3: Efficacy outcome measures relevant for the application

\* Time point for data collection used in analysis (follow up time for time-to-event measures)

#### 3.7.1.1 Validity of outcomes

PFS and OS are generally considered the gold standard measures of efficacy in oncology clinical trials and are required by regulatory authorities for the approval of new cancer treatments. PFS and OS as endpoints in trials are easily and precisely measured and

based on objective and quantitative assessment. Thus, we included them as efficacy outcomes in the present application.

The primary evaluation of PFS, as determined by the Investigator, was performed per RE-CIST v.1.1, which represents standardized World Health Organization response criteria, and are well-established criteria for patients with solid tumours (31).

In the DMC assessment of dostarlimab in the 2<sup>nd</sup> line treatment of endometrial cancer, OS and PFS were used as efficacy endpoints. It is described in the protocol, that the overall survival and progression-free disease measures are critical for assessing the value of the medicine to patients, because improved OS with the least toxicity is the optimal measure for cancer treatment and PFS reflects the burden and duration of the disease (11).

# 4. Health economic analysis

Treatment with Dostarlimab plus CP is considered to have added benefit compared to the current standard of care treatment with carboplatin and paclitaxel. Therefore, a costutility analysis (CUA) was performed in excel. This is in line with the methods guide from the Danish Medicines Council (32).

## 4.1 Model structure

A partitioned survival model (PSM) was developed to model costs and health outcomes for patients receiving dostarlimab plus CP relative to placebo plus CP. The model was evaluated for a lifetime time horizon by means of a cost-utility analysis. The primary outcome of the model is the incremental cost-effectiveness ratio (ICER).

A clear separation of progression free survival (PFS) Kaplan Meier (KM) curves was seen when dostarlimab plus CP was compared to CP. Thus, the cost-effectiveness was evaluated using a PSM. Such a structure is widely used within oncology by various authorities worldwide and is well understood by clinicians. In a review performed by NICE in 2017, it was found that 73% of the files reviewed by NICE used a PSM (33).

The model included three *mutually exclusive* health conditions, namely:

- 1. Progression-free disease (PFD)
- 2. Progressed disease (PD)
- 3. Death, from any cause (D)



The selected health conditions are consistent with the clinical endpoints evaluated in the RUBY study, including the primary endpoints of PFS and OS. To estimate the proportion of patients who received or had already stopped treatment during the PFD period, the curve for PFS also included the curve for the time to discontinuation (TTD) of treatment. Figure 3 shows a schematic representation of the PSM.





To estimate the number of patients occupying the three health states, parametric survival curves and flexible curves were fitted to the PFS and OS data from the RUBY trial. The best fitting and clinically appropriate curves were extrapolated beyond the duration of the trial over a lifetime time horizon. PFD state membership was estimated from the extrapolated PFS KM curve, the state membership of the dead state was estimated using the extrapolated OS KM curve (Death=1-OS), and finally the PD state membership was estimated to be the difference between the OS and PFS curves (PD=OS-PFS).

## 4.2 Model features

Table 4 presents a summary of the model features.

#### Table 4: Features of the economic model

Model features	Description	Justification
Patient population	Adult patients were included in the model from the time they were diagnosed with dMMR/MSI-H primary ad- vanced or relapsed EC and eli- gible for systemic therapy	No deviation from section 3.2 and in line with the patients enrolled in RUBY.

Model features	Description	Justification
Perspective	Limited societal perspective	According to DMC methods guide
Time horizon	Lifetime (36 years)	Patients were included at an age of 64, informed by median age in RUBY, up to a maxi- mum of 99 years.
Cycle length	Weekly cycle length, defined as 7 days.	In line with the RUBY time-to- event survival analysis.
Half-cycle correction	No	Considering the short cycle length, no half cycle correc- tion was applied
Discount rate	3.5 %	According to DMC methods guide
Intervention	Dostarlimab plus CP	
Comparator(s)	СР	According to national treat- ment guideline. Validated by Danish clinical expert
Outcomes	OS, PFS	The PFS and OS extrapolations are based on the RUBY trial for both dostarlimab plus CP and CP



# 5. Overview of literature

In this section, the literature used in the present application is presented. Since the RUBY trial is a head-to-head study comparing dostarlimab with carboplatin and paclitaxel both in terms of efficacy, safety and health-related quality of life, no systematic literature search was needed. The RUBY trial is described in more details in Appendix A. Main characteristics of studies included

# 5.1 Literature used for the clinical assessment

The application is based on a head-to-head study (RUBY) with a comparator relevant to Danish clinical practice.



#### Table 5: Relevant literature included in the assessment of efficacy and safety

Reference (Full citation incl. reference number)	Trial name	NCT identifier	Dates of study	Used in comparison of
Dostarlimab for Primary Advanced or Recurrent En- dometrial Cancer. Mansoor R. Mirza et al. N Engl J Med 2023; 388:2145-2158 DOI: 10.1056/NEJMoa2216334 (30)	RUBY	NCT03981796	Start: 18/07/19 Completion: 26/11/26 (ESTIMATED) Data cut-off 28/09/22	Dostarlimab plus CP vs. placebo plus CP For ITT and dMMR/MSI- H population
Dostarlimab for primary advanced or recurrent (A/R) endometrial cancer (EC): Outcomes by blinded independent central review (BICR) of the RUBY trial. Powell et al. suppl 16, 2023, Journal of Clinical On- cology, Årg. 41, s. 5503-55-03. https://doi.org/10.1200/JCO.2023.41.16_suppl.5503	RUBY	NCT03981796	Start: 18/07/19 Completion: 26/11/26 (ESTIMATED) Data cut-off 28/09/22	Dostarlimab plus CP vs. placebo plus CP For ITT and dMMR/MSI- H population

# 5.2 Literature used for the assessment of health-related quality of life

The Global SLR for dostarlimab plus chemotherapy in endometrial cancer is designed to identify disutilities as part of the HRQoL search, based on search terms found in Table 41 in Appendix I. Literature searches for health-related quality of life

The HRQoL SLR only identified one study (Hildebrandt et al. 2014), which did not include AE disutilities. In the absence of relevant disutility data, a pragmatic approach was used to parameterise the adverse event disutilities, by performing a targeted literature searches to source the disutility values. The search first focused on values accepted in previous NICE submissions specific to EC, then where values could not be identified, other gynaecological cancers were used to inform the inputs. As such the model uses sources that have previously been accepted by NICE. Two NICE submissions included

disutilities which were relevant to the list of adverse events: TA779 (dostarlimab for previously treated advanced or recurrent EC) and TA673 (niraparib for ovarian, fallopian tube and peritoneal cancer). Where no disutility value was found in either of these submissions, the publications referenced in these documents were used (e.g., studies for renal cell carcinoma and non-small cell lung cancer were referenced in TA779, so were used in the model). Given the absence of relevant disutility evidence identified in the HRQoL SLR, a pragmatic approach to source disutility values was followed, using values accepted in previous HTA. Nevertheless, it is important to note that AEs disutilities are not a key driver in the model, therefore, the choice of disutility value has little to no bearing on the overall cost-effectiveness.

The literature included in the model to inform the HRQoL are listed in Table 6.

Reference (Full citation incl. reference number)	Health state/Disutility	Reference to where in the application the data is described/applied
Dostarlimab for Primary Advanced or Recurrent En- dometrial Cancer. Mansoor R. Mirza et al. N Engl J Med 2023; 388:2145-2158 DOI: 10.1056/NEJMoa2216334	Health state/Advanced or Recurrent endometrial cancer	Table 17: Overview of health state utility values [and disutilities]
(30)		
NICE. Dostarlimab for previously treated advanced or recurrent endometrial cancer with high microsat- ellite instability or mismatch repair deficiency. Pub- lished 16 March 2022. <u>TA779 Committee papers</u> (nice.org.uk), page 161. Accessed February 2024	Disutility/adverse event	Table 17: Overview of health state utility values [and disutilities]
(35)		

#### Table 6: Relevant literature included for (documentation of) health-related quality of life
	•	•	•
•			0
•			•
	•		

Reference (Full citation incl. reference number)	Health state/Disutility	Reference to where in the application the data is described/applied
NICE. Niraparib for maintenance treatment of ad- vanced ovarian, fallopian tube and peritoneal cancer after response to first-line platinum-based chemo- therapy. Guidance. [Online] May 2020. https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/ta673/docu- ments/committee-papers, page 156, Accessed Feb- ruary 2024	Disutility/adverse event	Table 17: Overview of health state utility values [and disutilities]
(36)		
Necitumumab for untreated advanced or metastatic squamous non-small-cell lung cancer. Guidance. [Online] September 2016. https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/ta411/docu- ments/committee-papers, page 173 and 177, Ac- cessed February 2024 (37)	Disutility/adverse event	Table 17: Overview of health state utility values [and disutilities]
Doyle S, Lloyd A, Walker M. Health state utility scores in advanced non-small cell lung cancer. Lung Cancer. 2008 Dec;62(3):374-80. doi: 10.1016/j.lung- can 2008 03 019. Enub 2008 May & PMID:	Disutility/adverse event	Table 17: Overview of health state utility values [and disutilities]
18467000.		
Doyle S, Lloyd A, Walker M. Health state utility scores in advanced non-small cell lung cancer. Lung Cancer. 2008 Dec;62(3):374-80. doi: 10.1016/j.lung- can.2008.03.019. Epub 2008 May 8. PMID: 18467000. (38)	Disutility/adverse event	Table 17: Overview of health state utility values [a disutilities]

Reference (Full citation incl. reference number)	Health state/Disutility	Reference to where in the application the data is described/applied
Swinburn P, Lloyd A, Nathan P, et al. Elicitation of health state utilities in metastatic renal cell carci- noma. Curr Med Res Opin 2010;26:1091-6. DOI: 10.1185/03007991003712258 (39)	Disutility/adverse event	Table 17: Overview of health state utility values [and disutilities]
Nafees B, Stafford M, Gavriel S, et al. Health state utilities for non small cell lung cancer. Health Qual Life Outcomes 2008;6:84. doi: 10.1186/1477-7525-6-84	Disutility/adverse event	Table 17: Overview of health state utility values [and disutilities]
(40)		

### 5.3 Literature used for inputs for the health economic model

The data used for the health economic model was primarily obtained from the head-to-head study RUBY, with the exception of AE incidence rates for subsequent treatments. These were found in an ad-hoc literature search and confirmed by clinical expert.

Table 7: Relevant	t literature used	l for input to	the health	economic model
-------------------	-------------------	----------------	------------	----------------

• •

Reference (Full citation incl. reference number)	Input/estimate	Method of identification	Reference to where in the application the data is described/applied
Dostarlimab for Primary Advanced or Recurrent Endometrial Cancer. Mansoor R. Mirza et al. N Engl J Med 2023; 388:2145-2158 DOI: 10.1056/NEJMoa2216334	Overall survival Progression Free Survival	N/A	Data is described in Section 6 and 9.

	•	•	•
•			0
•			•
	•	•	

Reference (Full citation incl. reference number)	Input/estimate	Method of identification	Reference to where in the application the data is described/applied
(30)			
Oaknin A, Tinker A V., Gilbert L, Samouëlian V, Mathews C, Brown J, et al. Clinical Activity and Safety of the Anti-Programmed Death 1 Monoclonal Antibody Dostarlimab for Patients with Recurrent or Advanced Mismatch Re- pair-Deficient Endometrial Cancer: A Nonrandomized Phase 1 Clinical Trial. JAMA Oncol. 2020;6(11):1766–72.	Incidence rate of adverse event in sec- ond line subsequent treatment: dostarlimab	Ad-hoc literature search	Data is described in Section 9 and 11.
(41)			
Gladieff L, Ferrero A, De Rauglaudre G, Brown C, Vasey P, Reinthaller A, Pu- jade-Lauraine E, Reed N, Lorusso D, Si- ena S, Helland H, Elit L, Mahner S. Car- boplatin and pegylated liposomal dox- orubicin versus carboplatin and paclitaxel in partially platinum-sensi- tive ovarian cancer patients: results from a subset analysis of the CALYPSO phase III trial. Ann Oncol. 2012 May;23(5):1185-1189. doi: 10.1093/annonc/mdr441. Epub 2011 Oct 5. PMID: 21976386.	Incidence rate of adverse event in sec- ond line subsequent treatment: car- boplatin/paclitaxel	Ad-hoc literature search	Data is described in Section 9 and 11.

Reference (Full citation incl. reference number)	Input/estimate	Method of identification	Reference to where in the application the data is described/applied
Mathews C, Lorusso D, Coleman RL, Boklage S, Garside J. An Indirect Com- parison of the Efficacy and Safety of Dostarlimab and Doxorubicin for the Treatment of Advanced and Recurrent Endometrial Cancer. Oncologist. 2022 Dec 9;27(12):1058-1066. doi: 10.1093/oncolo/oyac188. Erratum in: Oncologist. 2022 Nov 18;: PMID: 36124638; PMCID: PMC9732237.	Incidence rate of adverse event in sec- ond line subsequent treatment: doxo- rubicin	Ad-hoc literature search	Data is described in Section 9 and 11.
(43)			
Mileshkin L, Edmondson R, O'Connell RL, Sjoquist KM, Andrews J, Jyothirmayi R, Beale P, Bonaventura T, Goh J, Hall M, Clamp A, Green J, Lord R, Amant F, Alexander L, Carty K, Paul J, Scurry J, Millan D, Nottley S, Fried- lander M; PARAGON study group. Phase 2 study of anastrozole in recur- rent estrogen (ER)/progesterone (PR) positive endometrial cancer: The PARAGON trial - ANZGOG 0903. Gy- necol Oncol. 2019 Jul;154(1):29-37. doi: 10.1016/j.ygyno.2019.05.007. Epub 2019 May 23. PMID: 31130288. (44)	Incidence rate of adverse event in sec- ond line subsequent treatment: letro- zole	Ad-hoc literature search	Data is described in Section 9 and 11.



### 6. Efficacy of dostarlimab in adult patients with recurrent or advanced dMMR/MSI-H endometrial cancer

6.1 Efficacy of dostarlimab compared to carboplatin and paclitaxel for the treatment of adult patients with recurrent or advanced mismatch repair deficient/microsatellite instability-high endometrial cancer

### 6.1.1 Relevant studies

In adult patients with recurrent or advanced dMMR/MSI-H endometrial cancer, the efficacy of dostarlimab has been assessed in the RUBY-1 trial where dostarlimab plus CP was compared head-to-head with placebo plus CP. As the study is a head-to-head study, no additional studies were used in the comparison of dostarlimab and CP. Table 8 presents and overview of RUBY-1, and additional information can be found in Appendix A. Main characteristics of studies included

The RUBY trial is a phase 3, randomised, double-blind, multicentre trial conducted in 2 parts (30). RUBY-1 evaluate dostarlimab plus CP for 6 cycles followed by dostarlimab for up to 3 years; RUBY-2 evaluate dostarlimab plus CP for 6 cycles followed by dostarlimab plus niraparib for up to 3 years (45). RUBY-2 opened for enrolment when enrolment for RUBY-1 was complete; patients included in RUBY-1 were not eligible to take part in RUBY-2 (30). RUBY-2 is ongoing as of April 2023 and will not be presented in this application. Thus, this application is based solely on results from RUBY-1.

Efficacy results in the following are presented for the dMMR/MSI-H population that included all 118 randomised subjects with dMMR/MSI-H status: 53 subjects in the dostarlimab plus CP group and 65 subjects in the placebo plus CP group. As the EMA-approved indication for dostarlimab is currently only for the dMMR/MSI-H population, and this population was predefined as a subgroup in the RUBY-1 trial, we will be presenting the efficacy results for this population only.



NCT-number	Study design	duration	Patient population	Intervention	Comparator	Outcomes and follow-up period
RUBY (NCT03981796)	Randomized, double blinded, pla- cebo con- trolled, phase III trial of dostarlimab plus CP versus placebo plus CP.	The study is ongoing with a median fol- low-up of 25.4 months in the first data-cut. The primary completion is expected by November 2026	Adults with primary ad- vanced (stage III or IV) or first recurrent endometrial cancer. Stratification factors used in RUBY-1 were MMR/MSI status, prior external pelvic radiotherapy, and disease status (i.e. pri- mary stage III, primary stage IV or recur- rent) RUBY part 1: n=494	A total of 245 subjects were randomly as- signed to dostarlimab 500 mg IV + carboplatin AUC 5 mg/mL/min IV + paclitaxel 175 mg/m2 IV Q3W for cy- cles 1–6 fol- lowed by dostarlimab 1,000 mg IV Q6W up to 3 years	A total of 249 subjects were randomly as- signed to pla- cebo + car- boplatin AUC 5 mg/mL/min IV + paclitaxel 175 mg/m2 IV Q3W for cycles 1–6 followed by pla- cebo Q6W up to 3 years	<ul> <li>Primary endpoints         <ul> <li>Investigator-assessed PFS according to RECIST v1.1 criteria in patients with dMMR/MSI-H tumours and in the overall trial population.</li> <li>OS in the overall population</li> </ul> </li> <li>Secondary endpoints         <ul> <li>PFS by BICR</li> <li>ORR based on BICR and investigator assessment</li> <li>Duration of response based on BICR and investigator assessment</li> <li>Disease control rate based on BICR and investigator assessment</li> <li>PFS2</li> <li>PROs (EORTC-QLQ-C30; EORTC-QLQ-EN24; EQ-5D-5L)</li> <li>PK and immunogenicity analyses</li> </ul> </li> <li>Exploratory endpoints         <ul> <li>Genetic research</li> <li>Biomarkers in tumour tissue and/or blood</li> </ul> </li> <li>Safety endpoints         <ul> <li>TEAEs</li> <li>Clinical laboratory values</li> <li>Vital signs</li> <li>Physical examination</li> <li>ECG parameters</li> <li>Concomitant medication</li> </ul> </li> </ul>

### Table 8: Overview of study design for the RUBY-1 trial

Source: Mirza et al. 2023



### 6.1.2 Comparability of studies

Not applicable due to head-to-head study.

### 6.1.2.1 Comparability of patients across studies

As the comparison of dostarlimab plus CP vs placebo plus CP was based on a direct comparative analysis with data from the head-to-head study RUBY, only baseline characteristics from the RUBY trial are presented in Table 9.

 Table 9: Baseline characteristics of patients in studies included for the comparative analysis of efficacy and safety

	RUBY						
	dMMR/MSI-H	l population	Overall population (ITT)				
	Dostarlimab (N=53)	Placebo (N=65)	Dostarlimab (N=245)	Placebo (N=249)			
Age, years							
Median (range)	61 (45–81)	66 (39–85)	64 (41–81)	65 (28–85)			
≥65, n (%)	23 (43)	35 (54)	118 (48.2)	135 (54.2)			
Race or ethnic group, n (%)							
White	44 (83)	56 (86)	189 (77.1)	191 (76.7)			
Black	4 (8)	6 (9)	28 (11.4)	31 (12.4)			
Asian	2 (4)	0 7 (2.9)	8 (3.2)	8 (3)			
American Indian or Alaska Native	0	1 (2)	1 (0.4)	1 (0.4)			
Native Hawaiian or other Pacific Islander	1 (2)	0	1 (0.4)	0			
Unknown or not reported	2 (4)	2 (3)	19 (7.8)	18 (7.2)			
ECOG performance category, n/tota	ECOG performance category, n/total, n (%)						
0	28/52 (54)	39/65 (60)	145/241 (60.2)	160/246 (65.0)			
1	24/52 (46)	26/65 (40)	96/241 (39.8)	86/246 (35.0)			

	RUBY				
	dMMR/MSI-H	H population	Overall popul	lation (ITT)	
	Dostarlimab	Placebo	Dostarlimab	Placebo	
	(N=53)	(N=65)	(N=245)	(N=249)	
FIGO stage at diagnosis, n (%)					
1	18 (34)	22 (34)	65 (26.5)	71 (28.5)	
II	3 (6)	5 (8)	13 (5.3)	13 (5.2)	
III	14 (26)	20 (31)	75 (30.6)	65 (26.1)	
IV	14 (26)	15 (23)	72 (29.4)	84 (33.7)	
Unknown	4 (8)	3 (5)	20 (8.2)	16 (6.4)	
Disease status, n (%)					
Primary stage III	10 (19)	14 (22)	45 (18.4)	47 (18.9)	
Primary stage IV	16 (30)	19 (29)	83 (33.9)	83 (33.3)	
Recurrent	27 (51)	32 (49)	117 (47.8)	119 (47.8)	
BMI					
Median (range)	30.6 (20.1–54.4)	35.5 (17.9–58.1)	30.8 (17.6–60.6)	32.8 (17.7–68.0)	
Histologic type, n (%)					
Carcinosarcoma	4 (8)	1 (2)	25 (10.2)	19 (7.6)	
Endometrioid	44 (83)	56 (86)	134 (54.7)	136 (54.6)	
Mixed carcinoma ≥10% of carcinosarcoma, clear-cell, or serous histologic type	2 (4)	4 (6)	10 (4.1)	9 (3.6)	
Serous adenocarcinoma	1 (2)	1 (2)	50 (20.4)	52 (20.9)	
Clear-cell adenocarcinoma	0	0	8 (3.3)	9 (3.6)	
Mucinous adenocarcinoma	0	0	0	1 (0.4)	
Undifferentiated carcinoma	0	0	1 (0.4)	2 (0.8)	
Other	2 (4)	3 (5)	17 (6.9)	21 (8.4)	

	RUBY						
	dMMR/MSI-H	l population	Overall popul	ation (ITT)			
	Dostarlimab	Placebo	Dostarlimab	Placebo			
	(N=53)	(N=65)	(N=245)	(N=249)			
MMR-MSI status, n (%)							
dMMR–MSI-H	53 (100)	65 (100)	53 (21.6)	65 (26.1)			
pMMR–MSS	0	0	192 (78.4)	184 (73.9)			
Previous external pelvic radiothera	Previous external pelvic radiotherapy, n (%)						
Yes	8 (15)	13 (20)	41 (16.7)	45 (18.1)			
No	45 (85)	52 (80)	204 (83.3)	204 (81.9)			

Source: Mirza et al. 2023

### 6.1.3 Comparability of the study population(s) with Danish patients eligible for treatment

GSK has consulted a clinical expert, who confirms that the study population is fully comparable to the Danish patient population eligible for treatment. Relevant characteristics used in the health economic model are presented in Table 10.

Table 10:	<b>Characteristics</b> in	h the relevant	Danish	population	and in the	health	economic mode
10010 10.	characteristics in	i the relevant	Damon	population	und in the	neurun	ccononne moue

	Value in Danish population (reference)	Value used in health economic model (reference if relevant)
Age	63 years (11)	63.3 years (age at baseline in RUBY dMMR/MSI-H population)
Gender	Women	Women
Patient weight	N/A	89.17 kg (weight at baseline in RUBY dMMR/MSI-H population)
BSA	N/A	1.962 m <sup>2</sup> (BSA at baseline in RUBY dMMR/MSI-H population)

### 6.1.4 Efficacy – results per RUBY

In the following, efficacy results on PFS (investigator-assessed and BICR) and OS for the dMMR/MSI-H population are presented. The dMMR/MSI-H was a predefined sub-



population in the RUBY study. Furthermore, the dMMR/MSI-H population is the EMA approved population in first line (1). For progression free survival, hypotheses were hierarchically tested in the dMMR/MSI-H population and then in the overall population.

### 6.1.4.1 Statistical Analysis

The graphical method was used for multiplicity control of multiple hypotheses of primary end points and family-wise one-sided type I error (alpha) was controlled at 0.025 (see Figure 4). On the basis of the graphical method, an alpha level of 0.02 was initially allocated to hypotheses regarding progression-free survival by investigator assessment and an alpha level of 0.005 was initially allocated to hypotheses regarding overall survival. For progression-free survival, hypotheses were hierarchically tested in the dMMR/MSI-H population and then in the overall population; overall survival was tested in the overall population. If the null hypotheses for progression-free survival were all rejected, the 0.02 alpha level would be recycled to the hypothesis of overall survival, which would be tested at a one-sided alpha level of 0.025; otherwise, overall survival would be tested only at the initially allocated one-sided alpha level of 0.005.

The 95% confidence intervals of the hazard ratios reported were based on the Cox regression model and were not used for hypothesis testing. All P values reported were based on the stratified log-rank test.



#### Figure 4: Multiplicity Control Strategy

**Source:** Supplement to Mirza MR, Chase DM, Slomovitz BM, et al. Dostarlimab for primary advanced or recurrent endometrial cancer. N Engl J Med.

#### 6.1.4.2 Primary endpoint: Progression-free survival (investigator-assessed)

The median duration of follow-up was 24.8 months (range: 19.2, 36.9). Patients in the dostarlimab plus CP group had a statistically significant 72% reduction in risk of progression or death compared with the placebo plus CP group (HR: 0.28; 95% CI: 0.16, 0.50; p<0.001) (Figure 5) (30). For the dostarlimab plus CP and placebo plus CP groups, the estimated probability of PFS at 12 months was 63.5% (95% CI: 48.5, 75.3) and 24.4% (95% CI: 13.9, 36.4), respectively (46). At 24 months, the estimated probability of PFS was 4 times higher in the dostarlimab plus CP group compared with the placebo plus CP group (61.4% [95% CI: 46.3, 73.4] and 15.7% [95% CI: 7.2, 27.0], respectively). After approximately 12 months, a sustained separation of the KM curves was observed, with no further progression events reported in the dostarlimab plus CP group (30).



Figure 5: Kaplan-Meier estimates of PFS in the dMMR/MSI-H population (investigator-assessed)

Source: Mirza et al. 2023

### 6.1.4.3 Prespecified subgroup analysis: Overall survival dMMR/MSI-H

Patients in the dostarlimab plus CP group had a 70% reduction in risk of death compared with the placebo plus CP group (HR 0.30; 95% CI: 0.13, 0.70; nominal p=0.0016) (Figure 6), indicating an unprecedented clinically meaningful survival benefit with the dostarlimab plus CP regimen (**30**) (**46**). The estimated probability of survival at 12 and 24 months was 90.1% (95% CI: 77.8, 95.7) and 83.3% (95% CI: 66.8, 92.0), respectively, in the dostarlimab plus CP group and 79.6% (95% CI: 67.5, 87.5) and 58.7% (95% CI: 43.4, 71.2), respectively, in the placebo plus CP group (**30**). With a median follow-up time of approximately 2 years, 24 events had been observed in the placebo plus CP group compared with 7 events in the dostarlimab plus CP group.



### Figure 6: Kaplan-Meier estimates of OS in the dMMR/MSI-H population



Source: Mirza et al. 2023













#### 6.1.4.5 Discontinuation in the dMMR/MSI-H population

As of the data cutoff date, 75.5% of participants (n=39) in the dostarlimab plus CP arm and 50.8% of participants (n=33) in the placebo plus CP arm remained ongoing in the study. Death due to disease progression was the most frequently reported reason for discontinuation from the study. The median duration of follow-up was 24.79 months and was consistent between treatment arms (30).

In both treatment arms, the most common reason for dostarlimab or placebo discontinuation was PD according to RECIST v.1.1 criteria per Investigator assessment (25.0% dostarlimab plus CP, 61.5% placebo plus CP). The most common reason for discontinuation for carboplatin or paclitaxel was AE (30) (46).

Discontinuation of dostarlimab or placebo because of adverse events occurred in 17.3% of patients in the dostarlimab group and in 10.8% of patients in the placebo group. The most common adverse events leading to discontinuation of dostarlimab or placebo were maculopapular rash and infusion-related reaction (1.2% each) in the dostarlimab group and thrombocytopenia (1.2%) in the placebo group (30) (46).

Reasons for discontinuation of treatment	Dostar- limab plus CP (N=52)	Placebo plus CP (N=65)	Total (N=117)
			-
			-
			-
	I		
			I

### 6.1.4.6 Subsequent treatment for the dMMR/MSI-H population





from clinical expert states, that immunotherapy would not be prescribed in second line, if used in first line as no study has shown a beneficial result of re-introducing immunotherapy.



tribution of patients receiving either immunotherapy or chemotherapy corresponds to a high degree to Danish clinical practice and guidelines for patients not treated with immunotherapy in the first line setting.

Further details can be found in **Error! Reference source not found.** in Appendix B. Efficacy results per study

# 7. Comparative analyses of efficacy

### 7.1 Differences in definitions of outcomes between studies

Not applicable due to head-to-head study.

### 7.2 Method of synthesis

Not applicable due to head-to-head study.

### 7.3 Results from the comparative analysis

Please see Table 11 below.

 Table 11: Results from the comparative analysis of dostarlimab plus carboplatin-paclitaxel vs.

 placebo plus carboplatin paclitaxel for the dMMR/MSI-H patient population

Outcome measure	Dostarlimab plus CP (N=53)	Placebo plus CP (N=65)	Result
Probability of progres-	61.4%	15.7%	45,7%
sion-free survival at 24 months	[95% CI: 46.3, 73.4]	[95% CI: 7.2, 27.0]	[HR: 0.28;
			95% CI: 0.16, 0.50;
			P<0.001]

Outcome measure	Dostarlimab plus CP (N=53)	Placebo plus CP (N=65)	Result
Probability of survival	83.3%	58.7%	24,6%
at 24 months	[95% CI: 66.8, 92.0]	[95% CI: 43.4, 71.2]	[HR: 0.30;
			95% CI: 0.13, 0.70;
			nominal p=0.0016]

Source: Mirza et al. 2023

### 7.4 Efficacy – results per [outcome measure]

Not applicable due to head-to-head study; see section 6.

# 8. Modelling of efficacy in the health economic analysis

### 8.1 Presentation of efficacy data from the clinical documentation used in the model

The efficacy for dostarlimab plus CP and for CP was determined based on the data obtained from the RUBY study. In the PSM, the PFS and OS Kaplan-Meier (KM) curves are used directly to model the PFD-state, the PD-state, and the D-state. A detailed description on how the different KM curves are used in the model is described in Table - I.

Model input	Description
PFD	The proportion of patients in the pre-progression state is estimated by ex- trapolating PFS KM curves.
PD	The proportion of patients in the post-progression state is estimated as the difference between OS and PFS curves over time (i.e., post-progression = OS – PFS).
Death	Survival is estimated by extrapolating OS KM curves (i.e., death = 1 - OS).

### Table - I: PSM model input

### 8.1.1 Extrapolation of efficacy data

Efficacy data were used directly from RUBY to extrapolate survival curves for the dMMR/MSI-H population for PFS, time to treatment discontinuation (TTD) and OS for



both dostarlimab plus CP and CP. The RUBY study provided data up to a median followup of 24.8 months (primary data cut off 28<sup>th</sup> of September 2022) (46). To apply a lifetime time horizon in the CEA, extrapolation beyond the follow-up period was required. Data from the RUBY trial underwent comprehensive survival analysis that covered standard parametric analyses (including independent, dependent, and flexible where necessary), non-parametric and semi-parametric analyses.

For treatments included in the RUBY study, survival curves were fitted to the time-toevent patient-level data (PLD), based on Decision Support Unit (DSU) guidance from the NICE (47). Survival curves for all endpoints of interest in the model were fitted using individually modelled standard parametric curves: exponential, Weibull, Gompertz, log-logistic, log-normal, generalised Gamma and Gamma.

Additionally, dependent parametric curves were fitted to the PLD for all endpoints. These parametric curves were fitted to the dostarlimab plus CP and CP arms simultaneously with a covariate for treatment (reference = CP arm). As per the NICE DSU guidelines, parametric curves were jointly fitted to the data: exponential, Weibull, Gompertz, log-normal, log-logistic, generalised Gamma and Gamma (47).

As the results of the survival analysis for PFS indicated that standard parametric models may not capture the shape of the hazard for dostarlimab plus CP or CP, flexible spline analyses were also fitted to the PLD for PFS. The flexible spline analyses were used as this was the preferred method of flexible survival modelling by a panel of experts with indepth knowledge of survival analyses, (48) and it is used in HTAs. The hazards, normal and odds distributions were modelled with up to three knots explored.

All analyses were carried out in R using the 'survival' package, in RStudio version 1.3.959. A detailed description of the chosen methodology and results for the PFS and OS extrapolations is presented in Appendix D. Extrapolation



#### 8.1.1.1 Extrapolation of PFS





tary survival analyses of seven parametric dependent (by treatment covariate) models for PFS are presented in Appendix D. Extrapolation

#### Table 12: Summary of assumptions associated with extrapolation of PFS



Method/app roach	Description/assumption
Function with best AIC fit	
Function with best BIC fit	AIC goodness of fit statistics are more reliable for the assessment of statistical as BIC goodness of fit statistics penalize models which are complex (i.e., have more coefficients, such as the flexible models). Therefore, for more complex models, such as flexible spline models, our analysis only outputs AIC statistics.
Function with best visual fit	
Function with best fit according to evaluation of smoothed hazard as- sumptions	
Validation of selected ex- trapolated curves (ex- ternal evi- dence)	UK clinical experts at an advisory board held by GSK in March 2023 (50). The co clusions were confirmed by one Danish clinical expert afterwards.
Function with the best fit ac- cording to external evi- dence	
Selected parametric function in base case analysis	
Adjustment of back- ground mor- tality with data from Statistics Denmark	Yes



### Method/app Description/assumption roach Adjustment No for treatment switching/crossover Assump-No tions of waning effect No Assumptions of cure point













### Table - II: Summary of assumptions associated with extrapolation of OS

Method/approach	Description/assumption
Data input	RUBY primary data cut off (September 2022)
Model	Independent models were considered for use in the base case analyses. A pseudo-piecewise approach was used in the base case for dostarlimab plus CP and CP, utilising the KM for the full follow-up period, to increase the accuracy of the estimates by making use of all the data available. The pseudo-piecewise functionality uses the observed data up until the median follow-up or the end of the ob- served period (as selected by the user) followed by the tail of the standard parametric curve (based on the full dataset).
Assumption of proportional haz- ards between intervention and comparator	No
Function with best AIC fit	
Function with best BIC fit	
Function with best visual fit	
Function with best fit according to evaluation of smoothed hazard as- sumptions	
Validation of selected extrapolated curves (external evidence)	UK clinical experts at an advisory board held by GSK in March 2023. The conclusions were confirmed by one Danish clinical expert afterwards.
Function with the best fit according to external evidence	
Selected parametric function in base case analysis	
Adjustment of background mortal- ity with data from Statistics Den- mark	Yes

Method/approach	Description/assumption
Adjustment for treatment switch- ing/cross-over	No
Assumptions of waning effect	No
Assumptions of cure point	No



















### Table - III: Summary of assumptions associated with extrapolation of TTD

Method/approach	Description/assumption
Data input	RUBY-1 primary data cut off (September 2022)
Model	Only independent parametric models were considered for TTD, given that a treatment effect is not applicable to discontinuation in the same manner as PFS and OS. Ac- cordingly, dependent parametric models were not a suit- able to extrapolate the TTD data.
	A pseudo-piecewise analysis was conducted utilizing the KM for the full follow-up to improve the accuracy of the TTD estimations by using all observed data.
Assumption of proportional haz- ards between intervention and comparator	Νο
Function with best AIC fit	
Function with best BIC fit	
Function with best visual fit	
Function with best fit according to evaluation of smoothed hazard as- sumptions	

Method/approach	Description/assumption
Validation of selected extrapolated curves (external evidence)	UK clinical experts at an advisory board held by GSK in March 2023. The conclusions were confirmed by one Danish clinical expert afterwards.
Function with the best fit according to external evidence	
Selected parametric function in base case analysis	
Adjustment of background mortal- ity with data from Statistics Den- mark	Yes
Adjustment for treatment switch- ing/cross-over	No
Assumptions of waning effect	No
Assumptions of cure point	No













### 8.1.2 Calculation of transition probabilities

N/A

Table 13: Transitions in the health economic model

Health state (from)	Health state (to)	Description of method	Reference
N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A

### 8.2 Presentation of efficacy data from [additional documentation]

N/A

### 8.3 Modelling effects of subsequent treatments

Patients are assumed to receive second-line subsequent treatment following disease progression from first-line therapy. Subsequent treatment regimen data used in the model base case were informed by a Danish clinical expert, presented in Table - IV. Subsequent treatment regimens are population-specific; hence the base case includes regimens received by patients in the dMMR/MSI-H subgroup.

Primary treatment	Subsequent treatment	Second-line regimen (%)		
Dostarlimab plus CP	Dostarlimab	0%		
	Carboplatin and paclitaxel	32%		

#### Table - IV: Base-case second line subsequent treatment regimens



Primary treatment	Subsequent treatment	Second-line regimen (%)		
	Doxorubicin	32%		
	Letrozole	16%		
	No treatment*	20%		
	Dostarlimab	45%		
	Carboplatin and paclitaxel	36%		
СР	Doxorubicin	9%		
	Letrozole	0%		
	No treatment*	10%		

Source: informed by clinical expert. \*GSK assumption

## 8.4 Other assumptions regarding efficacy in the model N/A

### 8.5 Overview of modelled average treatment length and time in model health state





### 9. Safety

In this section we present safety data from the RUBY trial on patients treated with dostarlimab plus CP and placebo plus CP in the ITT population.

### 9.1 Safety data from RUBY

The safety analysis set for the double-blind phase of the RUBY trial consisted of all randomized subjects in the ITT analysis set, who received at least one or more cycle of treatment. For a summary of the safety data specific for the dMMR/MSI-H population go to Appendix E. Serious adverse events

Safety in the RUBY trial was assessed through monitoring of treatment-emergent adverse events (TEAEs), clinical laboratory parameters, vital signs, and physical examination. All AEs were assessed by the investigator for intensity according to Common Terminology Criteria for Adverse Events version 4.03 (CTCAE v4.03) (30).

TEAEs were defined as any AE or SAE that occurred on or after the start of study intervention, or worsened from baseline in intensity or frequency, through 90 days after last dose of study intervention or until the start of alternate anticancer therapy (whichever occurred first) (30) (46).

The most common adverse events that occurred or worsened during treatment were nausea (53.9% of patients in the dostarlimab group and 45.9% of patients in the placebo group), alopecia (53.5% and 50.0%), and fatigue (51.9% and 54.5%). Rash and maculopapular rash were the adverse events with the largest differences between the treatment groups and were reported more frequently in the dostarlimab group than in the placebo group (22.8% vs. 13.8% for rash and 14.1% vs. 3.7% for maculopapular rash) (30).

The most common immune-related adverse events were hypothyroidism (11.2% in the dostarlimab group and 2.8% of those in the placebo group), rash (6.6% and 2.0%), ar-thralgia (5.8% and 6.5%), and an increase in alanine aminotransferase levels (5.8% and 0.8%) (30) (46).



An overview of the safety events in the treatment phase is presented in **Error! Reference** source not found.

Dostarlimab plus CP (N= 241)	Placebo plus CP (N= 246)	Difference, % (95 % Cl)
		N/A
		N/A
		N/A
		N/A
		N/A



Go to Appendix E. Serious adverse events for additional information of dose modifications.

The incidences of grade 3 or higher adverse events and serious adverse events that occurred or worsened during treatment were each approximately 10 percentage points higher in the dostarlimab group than in the placebo group (adverse events, 70.5% vs. 59.8%; serious adverse events, 37.8% vs. 27.6%) (30).

Discontinuation of dostarlimab or placebo in the ITT population due to adverse events occurred in 17.4% in the dostarlimab group and in 9.3% in the placebo group. The most common adverse events leading to discontinuation were maculopapular rash and infusion-related reaction (1.2% each) in the dostarlimab group and thrombocytopenia (1.2%) in the placebo group (30). Five deaths due to adverse events occurred in the dostarlimab group, none in the placebo group. One death that was reported by the investigator as related to the dostarlimab regimen occurred during the first six cycles (myelosuppression), one death was related to dostarlimab and occurred during the 90-day safety follow-up (hypovolemic shock), and three were judged not to be related to the dostarlimab regimen (30).

Table 14 shows serious events occurring in >2 % in each group due the limited frequency of serious adverse events. According to the DMC application template, a list of all SAEs with frequency of  $\geq$ 5% recorded in the study should be presented. However, no SAEs had a frequency of  $\geq$ 5%; thus, this list could not be provided. A full list of SAEs reported in the study is presented in Appendix E. Serious adverse events Table 14: Serious events occurring in >2% of patients in either group. The median duration of follow-up was 25.4 months (range, 19.2 to 37.8) in the overall population

	Dostarlimab plus (N= 241)	s CP	Placebo plus CP (N= 246)		
	Number of pa- tients with ad- verse events	Number of ad- verse events	Number of pa- tients with ad- verse events	Number of ad- verse events	
Adverse event, n (%)					
Sepsis	8 (3.3 %)	N/A	1 (0.4 %)	N/A	
Pulmonary embolism	6 (2.5)	N/A	5 (2.0)	N/A	
Pyrexia	6 (2.5)	N/A	2 (0.8)	N/A	
Dyspnoea	5 (2.1)	N/A	1 (0.4)	N/A	
Muscular weakness	5 (2.1)	N/A	1 (0.4)	N/A	
Anaemia	3 (1.2)	N/A	6 (2.4)	N/A	
Asthenia	2 (0.8)	N/A	6 (2.4)	N/A	
Urinary tract infection	3 (1.2)	N/A	5 (2.0)	N/A	

Source: Mirza et al. 2023

The model considers the impact of AEs to the costs and quality of life of patients receiving dostarlimab plus CP and CP. Only treatment-related grade  $\geq$ 3 AEs in  $\geq$ 5% of patients in either treatment group in the ITT population of the RUBY trial were included in the model.

AEs were incorporated as one-off events and the impact was attributed to the first cycle of the model, under the assumption that AEs are likely to occur very soon after treatment initiation and only require acute care. The cost and QALY impact of AEs were calculated as the sum product of the AE rates for each treatment and the cost per treatment/disutility for each event. The primary treatment AE rates applied in the model are presented in **Error! Reference source not found.**.

Adverse events	Dostarlimab plus CP (n= 241)	Placebo plus CP (n= 246)		
	Frequency used in economic model for inter- vention	Frequency used in economic model for com- parator	Source	Justification
Adverse event, n (%)				
			l	

### 9.2 Safety data from external literature applied in the health economic model

External literature was used to inform the model with AE incidence rates for the included second-line subsequent treatments. The subsequent treatment AE rates applied in the model are presented in Table 15. Only grade  $\geq$ 3 AEs in  $\geq$ 5% of patients in the presented studies were included in the model, and only those AEs that are included for first line treatment are considered for subsequent treatment options

### Table 15: Adverse events in second-line subsequent treatment used in the health economic model

	Dosta (n=	arlimab : 129)	CP (n= 180)		Doxorubicin (n= 249)		Letrozole (n= 82)	
Adverse events	Frequency used in economic Source model, n (%)		Frequency used in economic Source model, n (%)		Frequency used in economic Source model, n (%)		Frequency used in economic Source model, n (%)	
Anaemia	19 (14.7)	(41)	8 (4.4)	(42)	38 (15.3)	(43)	7 (8.5)	(44)
Neutropenia	0 (0.0)	(41)	91 (50.6)	(42)	112 (45.0)	(43)	0 (0.0)	(44)
Neutrophil count decrease	0 (0.0)	(41)	0 (0.0)	(42)	25 (10.0)	(43)	0 (0.0)	(44)
Hypertension	0 (0.0)	(41)	0 (0.0)	(42)	0 (0.0)	(43)	0 (0.0)	(44)
White blood cell count decreased	0 (0.0)	(41)	0 (0.0)	(42)	20 (8.0)	(43)	0 (0.0)	(44)
Hypokalaemia	0 (0.0)	(41)	0 (0.0)	(42)	0 (0.0)	(43)	0 (0.0)	(44)
Pulmonary em- bolism	0 (0.0)	(41)	0 (0.0)	(42)	0 (0.0)	(43)	0 (0.0)	(44)

	Dostarlimab CP (n= 129) (n= 180)		ſ	Doxorubicin (n= 249)		Letrozole (n= 82)			
Lymphocyte count decreased	0 (0.0)	(41)	0 (0.0)	(42)	0 (0.0)	(43)	0 (0.0)	(44)	
Abdominal pain	7 (5.4)	(41)	0 (0.0)	(42)	0 (0.0)	(43)	0 (0.0)	(44)	


# 10. Documentation of health-related quality of life (HRQoL)

In this section, the HRQoL data relevant for the assessment of dostarlimab plus CP versus placebo plus CP is described. Health related quality of life data was collected in the RUBY trial—including EQ-5D-5L, EORTC QLQ-C30 and EORTC QLQ-EN24. To support this submission, we are going to present the EQ-5D-5L data because they are preferred by the Medicines Council (32).

#### Table 16: Overview of included HRQoL instrument

Measuring instrument	Source	Utilization
EQ-5D-5L	Data is obtained from the RUBY trial	Used to derive health state utility values for the PFD and the PD state to inform the health economic model.

## 10.1 Presentation of the health-related quality of life

#### 10.1.1 Study design and measuring instrument

In the RUBY trial HRQoL data was collected using EQ-5D-5L. The instrument was used at baseline and at check-ups in the manner it is validated for (46). The data collection of EQ-5D-5L is described in the section below. EQ-5D was designed to evaluate the generic quality of life of individual patients. The descriptive system is a preference based HRQoL measurement with one question for each of the 5 dimensions that include mobility, self-care, usual activities, pain/discomfort, and anxiety/depression. The instrument is validated and used across countries and patient population (32).

One important aspect of HRQoL, particular in cancer trials, is that the HRQoL can change rapidly after the disease has progressed. Therefore, it is essential to consider the preand post-progression states when analysing the utility estimates. To determine whether patients in the study were in a pre- or post-progression health state, PFS was used. Progression was defined as the time from the date of randomization to the earliest date of radiographic assessment of PD or death by any cause in the absence of PD, whichever occurred first. Tumour response was evaluated using RECIST v.1.1. If at a patient's tumour assessment visit, confirmed progression had not been established, then the patient



was in a pre-progression state for that visit. At the next scheduled visit if the patient had a confirmed progression, the health state of the patient was updated to post-progression for that visit and subsequent visits.

Overall, the demographics in RUBY are well-balanced between treatment arms and the population is representative of the expected population of Danish patients with primary advanced or recurrent EC, as presented in Table 9 and Table 10.

#### 10.1.2 Data collection

QoL measurements in RUBY were collected at baseline (Cycle 1 Day 1), on day 1 of each treatment cycle, at the end of the treatment cycle, and at safety and survival follow-up visits. A summary of completion and missing data points is presented in **Error! Reference source not found.** 



#### Dostarlimab plus CP СР HRQoL Expected to HRQoL Expected to population Missing complete Completion Population Missing complete Completion N (%) N (%) Time point Ν Ν Ν N (%) Ν N (%)



	Dostarlimab plus CP					СР		
	HRQoL population	Missing	Expected to complete	Completion	HRQoL Population	Missing	Expected to complete	Completion
Time point	N	N (%)	N	N (%)	N	N (%)	N	N (%)
							l	
							l	
			I					
			I					



	Dostarlimab plus CP				СР			
	HRQoL population	Missing	Expected to complete	Completion	HRQoL Population	Missing	Expected to complete	Completion
Time point	N	N (%)	N	N (%)	N	N (%)	N	N (%)
							I	
							I	
			I					
			I					
			I				I	
			I				I	







A mixed-effects model for repeated measures (MMRM) was performed to compare between-treatment differences adjusting for correlations across multiple time points within a patient and controlling for the baseline value. Adjusted mean difference and 95% confidence intervals (CIs) are presented to illustrate the effect of treatment. Adjusted means and standard error bars were plotted over time. The MMRM model includes patient, treatment, analysis visit, and treatment-by-visit interaction as explanatory variables and the baseline value as a covariate together with the baseline-by-visit interaction. Treatment, visit, and treatment-by-visit interactions were fixed effects in the model; patient was treated as a random effect. An unstructured covariance matrix was used to model the within subject variance and the Kenward-Roger approximation was used to estimate the degrees of freedom. Restricted maximum likelihood estimation was used. Overall adjusted mean estimates and estimates of the treatment difference were derived, representing the average treatment effect over visits giving each visit equal weight. As the fit



of the unstructured covariance structure failed to converge, the covariance structures Toeplitz with heterogeneity and autoregressive with heterogeneity were used in order to reach convergence.

#### 10.1.3 HRQoL results

Error! Reference source not found.







An analysis of the change in baseline of Danish utility values at the different time points including a comparison between treatment arms are shown in **Error! Reference source not found.**.

A similar table with EQ-5D VAS is found in

Appendix F. Health-related quality of life.

D	ostarlimab plus CP		СР	Dostarlimab plus CP vs. CP
N	Mean (SE)	N	Mean (SE)	Difference (95% CI) p-value









# 10.2 Health state utility values (HSUVs) used in the health economic model

#### 10.2.1 HSUV calculation

As valid HRQoL data were collected in clinical trials, these data have been used to inform the health states in the model. The EQ-5D-5L data from RUBY have been indexed with Danish preference weights from Jensen et al. 2021 in line with recommendations from the Danish Medicines Council (32) (51). The model applies age-adjustment to the HRQoL data in alignment with the method guidance from the DMC (52).

#### 10.2.1.1 Mapping

Not applicable.

#### 10.2.2 Disutility calculation



The disutilities associated with second line subsequent treatment is not included in the analysis due to the paucity of evidence in the published literature on the proportion of patients experiencing AEs during second-line therapy.

#### 10.2.3 HSUV results

The sum product of the disutility and the occurrence of adverse reactions per treatment arm used in the model is listed in Table 17.

The sum product of the disutility was assigned once in the first cycle of the model because it is unknown when in time the specific side effects occur during treatment and how long they last. The sum product is calculated by multiplying the percentage by which a specific adverse reaction occurs by the disutility of the adverse reaction in question. Since the disutilities used to inform AEs are not based on Danish value tariffs, there are some uncertainties when comparing them to the observed results from RUBY that have been converted to the Danish value tariffs. However, due to the paucity of available data these values were included in the base case analysis.

	Results [95% CI]	Instrument	Tariff (value set) used	Comments
HSUVs				
HSUV PFD		EQ-5D-5L	DK	Estimate is based on mean of both trial arms.
HSUV PD		EQ-5D-5L	DK	Estimate is based on mean of both trial arms.
AE disutility				
Anaemia	-0.119	EQ-5D	UK	(39)
Neutropenia	-0.090	EQ-5D	UK	(40)
Neutrophile count decreased	0.000	N/A	N/A	Assumed to have no utility impact – NICE dostarlimab 2 line (35)
Hypertension	-0.020	EQ-5D	UK	NICE: TA381 (36)

Table 17:	Overview	of health	state uti	itv values	[and disutilities]	1
	0.000	orneatti	State at	ity values	[und unsutnities]	

	Results [95% CI]	Instrument	Tariff (value set) used	Comments
White blood cell count decreased	0.000	N/A	N/A	Assumed to have no utility impact – NICE dostarlimab 2 line (35)
Hypokalaemia	-0.074	EQ-5D	UK	(40)
Pulmonary embo- lism	-0.320	N/A	N/A	NICE: TA411 (37)
Lymphocyte count decreased	0.000	N/A	N/A	Assumed to equal neutrophil count de- creased
Abdominal pain	-0.069	EQ-5D	N/A	(38)

# 10.3 Presentation of the health state utility values measured in other trials than the clinical trials forming the basis for relative efficacy

Not applicable.

- 10.3.1 Study design
- 10.3.2 Data collection
- 10.3.3 HRQoL Results
- 10.3.4 HSUV and disutility results

#### Table 18: Overview of health state utility values [and disutilities]

Results	Instrument	Tariff	Comments
[95% CI]		(value set) used	

N/A

Table 19: Overview of literature-based health state utility values

Results [95% CI]	Instrument	Tariff (value set) used	Comments

N/A



# 11. Resource use and associated costs

To estimate the resource use and associated costs of treating dMMR/MSI-H EC patients with dostarlimab plus CP and SoC, data from RUBY, the available summary of product characteristics (SmPC) of all included medicines, input from a Danish clinical expert, assumptions and Danish clinical guidelines were applied. A description of each cost element and how it was valued in the health economic analysis is presented in the following sections.

## 11.1 Medicine costs – intervention and comparator

All drug costs included in the model were based on the pharmacy purchasing price (PPP) obtained in February 2024. The PPP of the available packages of each treatment is presented in Table 20. Medicine costs for subsequent treatments is presented in Table 24.

Patients in RUBY received 500 mg of dostarlimab intravenously for the first six treatment cycles followed by 1000 mg per treatment cycle thereafter or placebo for all treatment cycles, in addition to carboplatin AUC 5 mg/ml/min plus paclitaxel 175 mg/m<sup>2</sup> administered intravenously every 3 weeks for six treatment cycles. (45) Dostarlimab is available in 500 mg strength and comes in a single vial. Carboplatin is available in 10 mg/ml strength as a single vial as either 15 ml or 45 ml package sizes, with both options included in the model. Paclitaxel is available both as concentrate for solution for infusion, 6 mg/ml, or as powder for infusion, 5 mg/ml. Only the concentrate for solution for infusion, 6 mg/ml in the package size 16,7 ml was included in the model. Acquisition costs were applied to the PFD health state based on the TTD curve in line with how treatment was received in the RUBY trial. The dosing and unit costs for CP were assumed to be the same for patients receiving CP with or without dostarlimab.

#### Table 20: Medicine costs used in the model

Medicine	Strength	Package size	Pharmacy purchase price [DKK]
Dostarlimab	500 mg	1 stk. concentrate for solution for infusion vials	42,427.75

Medicine	Strength	Package size	Pharmacy purchase price [DKK]
Carboplatin	10 mg/ml	15 ml concentrate for solution for infu- sion vials	95.00
Carboplatin	10 mg/ml	45 ml concentrate for solution for infu- sion vials	226.00
Paclitaxel	6 mg/ml	16.7ml concentrate for solution for infu- sion vials	110.50

Source: Medicinpriser.dk

To explore the impact of pharmaceutical wastage on costs, wastage is accounted for in the base case of the model. Costs associated with the model are based on the combination of vial/packages that minimises wastage in monetary terms (rather than by volume) based on baseline RUBY cohort characteristics. In Excel, selection of dose combination with wastage is done via linear optimization. The problem is defined as a minimization problem with the objective junction to minimize the cost pr. cycle. The constraints are that the dose must be at least the dose pr. cycle, and the number of each pack size must be whole numbers.

### 11.2 Medicine costs – co-administration

Not applicable.

### 11.3 Administration costs

The dosage regimen for dostarlimab, carboplatin and paclitaxel are included according to the RUBY protocol and Danish clinical guidelines (2) (46):

Dostarlimab plus CP: 6 cycles of carboplatin, paclitaxel and dostarlimab once every 3<sup>rd</sup> week, followed by dostarlimab once every 6<sup>th</sup> week as monotherapy.

CP: Once every 3<sup>rd</sup> week for 6 cycles.

To incorporate intravenous administration costs into the model, a unit cost of 1,314 DKK based on the DRG 2024 tariff "13MA98" was assumed for the first six treatment cycles in both treatment arms, followed by the same unit cost of 1,314 DKK for the following cycles in the dostarlimab plus CP arm.

#### Table 21: Administration costs used in the model

Administration type	Frequency	Unit cost [DKK]	DRG code	Reference
I.V. infusion	Every 3 <sup>rd</sup> week	1,314	13MA98, Diagno- sis: DC549 Proce- dure: BWAA62	DRG 2024
I.V. infusion	Every 6 <sup>th</sup> week	1,314	13MA98, Diagno- sis: DC549 Proce- dure: BWAA62	DRG 2024

## 11.4 Disease management costs

The disease management costs and associated DRG 2024 tariffs included in the model are presented in Table 22.

#### Table 22: Disease management costs used in the model

Activity	Frequency	Unit cost [DKK]	DRG code	Reference
Outpatient Visit (Consultant Oncologist)	every 3rd week, for 6 cycles, then every 6 <sup>th</sup> week	1,314	13MA98	DRG 2024
CT scan	Every 12 <sup>th</sup> week	2,440	30PRO6	DRG 2024
Blood test	Every 3 <sup>rd</sup> week for 6 cycles, then every 6 <sup>th</sup> week	22.02	-	Lægeforeningen, takstkort 29A

Resource use estimates for patients on dostarlimab and comparator therapies are derived from clinical expert opinion, gathered through a resource use interview, conducted to support the application, summarised in Table - V.

#### Table - V: Health state resource use

		Health state	Cycle 0-18	Cycle 19+
Dostarlimab plus CP	Outpatient Visit (Consultant Oncolo- gist)	PFS	0.33	0.17
		PD	0.33	0.33

		Health state	Cycle 0-18	Cycle 19+
	CT scan	PFS/PD	0.08	0.08
	Blood test	PFS/PD	0.33	0.17
СР	Outpatient Visit	PFS	0.33	0.17
	gist)	PD	0.33	0.33
	CT scan	PFS/PD	0.08	0.08
	Blood test	PFS/PD	0.33	0.17

Source: clinical expert

## 11.5 Costs associated with management of adverse events

Costs for managing AEs were included in the model. The AEs included in the model were based on the number of grade ≥3 AEs that occurred in the RUBY trial. 4 adverse events (neutropenia, neutrophil count decreased, white blood cell count decreased, and lymphocyte count decreased) were included in the model but with no unit cost associated in the base-case, based on input from a Danish clinical expert stating that these adverse events will not require treatment. One-off costs associated with adverse events were obtained using DRG 2024 tariffs. It was assumed that each AE is only experienced once per patient, therefore, the total cost of each AE is applied within the first cycle of the model in both treatment arms as a one-off cost. To derive the total costs associated with AEs by treatment, unit costs obtained from DRG 2024 tariffs were multiplied by the AE incidence rates outlined in **Error! Reference source not found.**.

#### Table 23: Cost associated with management of adverse events

	DRG code	Unit cost/DRG tariff [DKK]
Anaemia	13MA98	1,314
Neutropenia	-	0
Neutrophil count decreased	-	0
Hypertension	13MA98	1,314
White blood cell count decreased	-	0

	DRG code	Unit cost/DRG tariff [DKK]
Hypokalemia	13MA98	1,314
Pulmonary embolism	13MA01	21,976
Lymphocyte count decreased	-	0
Abdominal Pain	06MA11	7,818

## 11.6 Subsequent treatment costs

Patients are assumed to receive second-line subsequent treatment following disease progression from first-line therapy.

#### Table 24: Medicine costs of subsequent treatments

Medicine	Strength	Package size	Pharmacy purchase price [DKK]	Relative dose intensity	Average du- ration of treatment
Dostarlimab	500 mg	1 pcs. con- centrate for solution for infusion vials	42,427.75	500 mg every 3 weeks for 4 cycles fol- lowed by 1000 mg every 6 weeks for all cycles up to 2 years	1.02 years
Paclitaxel	6 mg/ml	16.7ml con- centrate for solution for infusion vials	100.50	175 mg/m2	0.27 year
	6 mg/ml	50 ml con- centrate for solution for infusion vials	201.50	175 mg/m2	0.27 year
Carboplatin	10 mg/ml	15 ml con- centrate for solution for infusion vials	95	444.57 mg/m2	0.27 year
	10 mg/ml	45 ml con- centrate for	226	444.57 mg/m2	0.27 year

Medicine	Strength	Package size	Pharmacy purchase price [DKK]	Relative dose intensity	Average du- ration of treatment
		solution for infusion vials			
Caelyx pegylated lipo- somal (Doxoru- bicin)	2 mg/ml	10 ml con- centrate for solution for infusion vials	3,700	70 mg/m2	0.18 year
Letrozole	2.5 mg	100 pcs. tab- lets	145	2.5 mg	0.27 year

Subsequent treatment regimens are population-specific, and the distribution of patients has been estimated by a clinical expert. It is assumed, that 50% of patients will be platinum sensitive based on the DMC assessment of dostarlimab second line treatment of dMMR/MSI-H EC (11).

Subsequent treatment drug costs were calculated based on available formulations, recommended dose and duration, pack sizes and unit costs from medicinpriser.dk. The recommended dose of subsequent treatment was based on the relevant SmPCs (1) (53) (54) (55) (56). Wastage was modelled for subsequent chemotherapies, in line with first-line treatment. A unit cost of 1,314 DKK based on the DRG 2024 tariff "13MA98" was applied to incorporate administration costs, in line with first-line treatment.

The total cost of subsequent treatments was calculated as the weighted average of the proportion of patients (see Table - IV) receiving each subsequent treatment in each treatment arm multiplied by the sum of the relevant drug acquisition and administration costs. This was multiplied by the number of regimen cycles received over the duration of treatment as sourced from published literature and applied as a one-off cost upon transition into the PD state.

The costs associated with AEs related to subsequent treatment were applied as a one-off cost at the start of subsequent treatment upon progression into the PD state. The AEs cost for each subsequent treatment were calculated by multiplying the incidence rate of each AE outlined in Table 15 with the respective unit costs outlined in

Table 23. The total AE costs for each subsequent treatment regimen applied to the dostarlimab plus CP and CP arms were calculated as the AE costs by subsequent treatment weighted by the proportion of patients receiving each second-line treatment in the treatment arms.



## 11.7 Patient costs

Patient and transportation costs are included in the model. Patient time was estimated using the average hourly salary in Denmark after tax. The numbers are calculated based on LONS20 in Statistics Denmark in line with the guidance document on valuation of unit costs. The current estimate is DKK 203/hour. In addition to patient time is also time and costs associated with transportation to and from the hospital. This was estimated based on the guidance document from the DMC, which estimates a total cost of DKK 140 (57).

All treatment regimens included in the model are IV, and therefore a hospital visit is required for each treatment administration. The relevant SmPCs (1) or pro.medicin.dk (54) (56) have been consulted to estimate the duration of each administration, please see Table 25 for the duration of the administration of each treatment regimen.

#### Table 25: Patient costs used in the model

Activity	Time spent [minutes, hours, days]
Outpatient visit	1 hour
Blood test	0.5 hours
CT scan	1 hour

# 11.8 Other costs (e.g. costs for home care nurses, out-patient rehabilitation and palliative care cost)

DGCG clinical guidelines recommends that all patients with EC should be tested using immunohistochemistry (IHC) to identify tumours with dMMR (8). Since testing has become standard of care for all patients with EC, testing costs are not included within the basecase analysis. To explore the impact of including IHC testing costs, the functionality of doing so has been incorporated in the model.

# 12. Results

### 12.1 Base case overview

An overview of the base case is presented in Table 26.



#### Table 26: Base case overview

Feature	Description				
Comparator	Carboplatin Paclitaxel (CP)				
Type of model	Partitioned survival model				
Time horizon	35.70 years (lifetime)				
Treatment line	1st line. Subsequent treatment lines are included in the model.				
Measurement and valuation of health effects	Health-related quality of life measured with EQ-5D-5L in the RUBY study (46). Danish population weights were used to esti- mate health-state utility values				
Costs included	Pharmaceutical costs				
	Hospital costs				
	Costs of adverse events				
	Patient costs				
	Transportation costs				
	Second line subsequent treatment costs				
Dosage of pharmaceutical	Based on weight in the RUBY trial				
Inclusion of waste	Yes				
Average time in model health state	Dostarlimab plus CP CP				
Health state – PFD					
Health state - PD					
Death					

#### 12.1.1 Base case results

The base case results are summarised in Table 27.



#### Table 27: Base case results, discounted estimates

	Dostarlimab plus CP	СР	Difference
Pharmaceutical costs			
Pharmaceutical costs – co-administra- tion	N/A	N/A	N/A
Administration	17,740	8,090	9,650
Disease management costs/Health state costs	255,361	137,395	117,966
Costs associated with management of adverse events	1,449	1,376	72
Subsequent treatment costs			
Patient costs	1,491	754	737
Palliative care costs	N/A	N/A	N/A
Total costs			
Total life years			

## 12.2 Sensitivity analyses

Deterministic one-way sensitivity analysis (OWSA) and probabilistic sensitivity analyses (PSA) were conducted to explore the level of uncertainty in the model results.



#### 12.2.1 Deterministic sensitivity analyses

The OWSA involved varying one parameter at a time and assessing the subsequent impact on the incremental QALYs and incremental costs. By varying each parameter individually, the sensitivity of the model results to that parameter was assessed. The OWSA was conducted by allocating a 'low' value and a 'high' value to each parameter; the low value is the lower bound of the 95% CI, the high value is the upper bound of the 95% CI. In the absence of CI data, the standard error (SE) was assumed to be 20% of the mean for all variables. The estimated SE was used to predict the upper and lower bound of the parameters' CI. The model parameters that were included in the OWSA can be found in the "Model parameters" sheet of the model: Inside the sheet, removing the "0" in column "L" excludes the chosen parameter from the OWSA, while adding a "0" includes the chosen parameter.

A tornado diagram (Error! Reference source not found.) graphically presents the parameters which have the greatest effect on the ICER. Error! Reference source not found. presents the ten most sensitive parameters.









#### 12.2.2 Probabilistic sensitivity analyses

To assess the uncertainty surrounding the included variables in the model, a PSA was performed with 5,000 iterations. Multiple parameters included in the model are not necessarily fixed values, but rather a continuum that includes a certain variability. The performed PSA evaluated the impact on the model results when multiple parameters included in the model were varied simultaneously. The model parameters that were included in the PSA can be found in the "Model parameters" sheet of the model: Parameters can be excluded from the PSA in the "Model Parameters" sheet in the "Probabilistic" column by setting the cell to the corresponding cell in the "Mean" column. An overview of the PSA data and a description of how correlation between the model parameters is handled in the model is presented in Appendix G. Probabilistic sensitivity analyses



Total costs, QALYs, and incremental cost per QALY gained for dostarlimab plus CP versus CP for the dMMR/MSI-H population generated through the PSA are presented in Table - VI.



Table - VI: PSA results for dostarlimab + CP versus CP for the dMMR/MSI-H population

The ICEP presented in **Error! Reference source not found.** shows that all iterations of the PSA resulted in an ICER in the north-east quadrant of the QALY plane indicating dostarlimab plus CP is more costly and more effective than CP.



The Cost-effectiveness Acceptability Curve (CEAC) is presented in Figure 7, indicating that dostarlimab plus CP is cost-effective at WTP of DKK 300,000.



#### Figure 7: The Cost-effectiveness Acceptability Curve



# 13. Budget impact analysis

# 13.1 Number of patients (including assumptions of market share)

An estimated 100 patient are diagnosed with advanced endometrial cancer each year and 30 patients with relapsed endometrial cancer (8) (18). 22-30% of these being dMMR/MSI-H (12) (13), approximate 30 new patients. A market share of 100% is expected if dostarlimab plus CP is recommended. This means that all 30 patients are expected to be candidates for treatment with dostarlimab plus CP each year.

 Table 28: Number of new patients expected to be treated over the next five-year period if the medicine is introduced (adjusted for market share)

	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5	
		R	ecommendatio	n		
Dostarlimab plus CP	30	30	30	30	30	
СР	0	0	0	0	0	
	Non-recommendation					

	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5
Dostarlimab plus CP	0	0	0	0	0
СР	30	30	30	30	30

## 13.2 Budget impact

Table 29: Expected budget impact (in DKK) of recommending dostarlimab plus CP for the indication

	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5
Dostarlimab plus CP is rec- ommended	18.604.695	30.698.243	31.341.454	31.946.687	32.505.732
Dostarlimab plus CP is NOT recommended	7.359.250	8.913.551	9.744.806	10.138.132	10.445.727
Budget impact of the recommendation	11.245.446	21.784.692	21.596.648	21.808.555	22.060.005



# 14. List of experts

GSK has received input for this application from a Danish clinical expert within endometrial cancer:





## 15. References

- 1. European Medicines Agency, (EMA). Summary of Product Characteristics Jemperli. s.l. : EMA, 2023.
- DGCG. Onkologisk behandling af endometriecancer. dgcg.dk. [Online] 10. 03 2023. http://dgcg.dk/images/retningslinier/Corpuscancer/DGCG\_Onko\_bh\_endometrieca ncer\_V.2.0\_AdmGodk\_100320236326.pdf.
- 3. Endometrial cancer. Morice, P, et al. 10023, 2016, Lancet, Årg. 387, s. 1094-1108.
- 4. The presence of postmenopausal bleeding as prognostic parameter in patients with endometrial cancer: a retrospective multi-center study. **Seebacher, V, et al.** 2009, BMC Cancer, Årg. 9, s. 460.
- 5. *Cancer of the corpus uteri: 2021 update*. **Koskas, M, et al.** suppl 1, 2021, Int J Gynaecol Obstet., Årg. 155, s. 45-60.
- 6. (ACS), American Cancer Society. cancer.org. *Signs and symptoms of endometrial cancer.* [Online] 2019. https://www.cancer.org/cancer/endometrial-cancer/detectiondiagnosis-staging/signs-and-symptoms.html.
- Randomized phase II study comparing docetaxel plus cisplatin, docetaxel plus carboplatin, and paclitaxel plus carboplatin in patients with advanced or recurrent endometrial carcinoma: a Japanese Gynecologic Oncology Group study (JGOG2041). Nomura H, Aoki D, Takahashi F, et al. 2011, Ann Oncol., s. 22(3):636-642.
- (DGCG), Dansk Gynækologisk Cancer Gruppe. Retningslinjer for visitation, diagnostik, behandling og kontrol af cancer corporis uteri. Kap 1. Indledning. *Retningslinjer for* visitation, diagnostik, behandling og kontrol af cancer corporis uteri. s.l. : DGCG, 2016, Årg. 3. udgave, s. 1-7.
- 9. Phase III trial of doxorubicin with or without cisplatin in advanced endometrial carcinoma: a gynecologic oncology group study. Thigpen JT, Brady MF, Homesley HD, et al. 2004, J Clin Oncol., s. 22(19):3902-3908.
- Phase III trial of doxorubicin plus cisplatin with or without paclitaxel plus filgrastim in advanced endometrial carcinoma: a Gynecologic Oncology Group Study. Fleming GF, Brunetto VL, Cella D, et al. 2004, J Clin Oncol, s. 22(11):2159-2166.
- 11. Medicinrådet. Medicinrådets anbefaling vedrørende dostarlimab til behandling af dMMR/MSI-high kræft i livmoderslimhinden - version 2.0. Bilag til Medicinrådets anbefaling vedr. dostarlimab til kræft i livmoderslimhinden. [Online] 2023. https://medicinraadet-classic.azureedge.net/media/dfxcvqox/bilag-tilmedicinr%C3%A5dets-anbefaling-vedr-dostarlimab-til-kr%C3%A6ft-ilivmoderslimhinden-vers-2-0.pdf.
- 12. *Immune check-point in endometrial cancer*. **De Felice, F, et al.** 8, 2019, int J Clin Oncol., Årg. 24, s. 910-916.
- Epidemiology of Microsatellite Instability High (MSI-H) and Deficient Mismatch Repair (dMMR) in Solid Tumors: A Structured Literature Review. Lorenzi, M, et al. 22, 2020, J Oncol., Årg. 2020, s. 1-17.
- Retreatment with carboplatin and paclitaxel for recurrent endometrial cancer: A retrospective study of the Memorial Sloan Kettering Cancer Center experience.
   Rubinstein M, Halpenny D, Makker V, Grisham RN, Aghajanian C, Cadoo K. 2019, Gynecol Oncol Rep., s. 28.
- 15. Life after endometrial cancer: A systematic review of patient-reported outcomes. **Shisler, R, et al.** 2, 2018, Gynecol Oncol., Årg. 148, s. 403-413.



- Fear of recurrence among older breat, ovarian, endometrial, and colorectal cancer survivors: Findings from the WHI LILAC study. Krok-Schoen, JL, et al. 7, 2018, Psychooncology, Årg. 27, s. 1810-1815.
- 17. Recurrent cancer is associated with dissatisfaction with care: a logitudinal analysis among ovarian and endometrial cancer patients. **de Rooij, BH, Ikiz, H og Boll, D.** 3, 2018, Int J Gynecol Cancer, Årg. 28, s. 614-622.
- 18. NORDCAN, Association of the Nordic Cancer Registries. Kræftstatistik: Nøgletal og figurer: Danmark Livmoder. [Online] 2017. https://gco.iarc.fr/media/nordcan/factsheets/93/dk/countries/208/livmoder-200danmark-208.pdf.
- ESGO/ESTRO/ESP guidelines for the management of patients with endometrial carcinoma. Concin, N, et al. 2021, International Journal of Gynecological Cancer, Årg. Bd. 31.
- 20. Dansk Gynækologisk Cancer Database. Landsdækkende klinisk database for gynækologisk kræft. National Årsrapport 2019/2020. 2021.
- 21. Dansk Gynækologisk Cancer Gruppe. Retningslinjer for visitation, diagnostik, behandling og kontrol af cancer corporis uteri. Kap. 5. Onkologisk behandling. 2019. s. 1-20. 4. udgave.
- 22. Predictive and Prognostic Value of Microsatellite Instability in Gynecologic Cancer (Endometrial and Ovarian). Evrard, c og Alexandre, J. 10, Basel : Cancers, 18. May 2021, Årg. 13, s. 24-34.
- 23. Refining prognosis and identifying targetable pathways for high-risk endometrial cancer; A TransPORTEC initiative. **Stelloo, E, et al.** 6, 2015, Mod Pathol., Årg. 28, s. 836-844.
- 24. **Observatory, Global Cancer.** gco.iarc.fr. *Cancer factsheet (GLOBOCAN 2020) 1-year, 3*year, and 5-year prevalence rates: Analysis tables for endometrial cancer. [Online] 2020. https://gco.iarc.fr/today/online-analysistable?v=2020&mode=population&mode\_population=countries&population=900&p opulations=900&key=asr&sex=2&cancer=24&type=2&statistic=1&prevalence=1&po pulation\_group=5&ages\_group%5B%5D=0&ages\_group%5B%5D=17&group\_cancer =.
- 25. *Targeted therapies in gynecological cancers: a comprehensive review of clinical evidence.* **Wang, q, et al.** 1, 2020, Signal Transduct Target Ter., Årg. 5, s. 137.
- 26. Doxorubicin versus doxorubicin and cisplatin in endometrial carcinoma: definitive results of a randomised study (55872) by the EORTC Gynaecological Cancer Group. Aapro MS, van Wijk FH, Bolis G, et al. 2003, Ann Oncol., s. 14(3):441-448.
- 27. Carboplatin and paclitaxel for advanced endometrial cancer: final overall survival and adverse event analysis of a phase III trial (NRG Oncology/GOG0209). Miller DS, Filiaci VL, Mannel RS, et al. 2020, J Clin Oncol, s. 38(33):3841-3850.
- 28. Randomized phase III noninferiority trial of first line chemotherapy for metastatic or recurrent endometrial carcinoma: A Gynecologic Oncology Group study. . Miller D, Filiaci V, Fleming G, et al. 2012.
- 29. A randomized phase II/III study of paclitaxel/carboplatin/metformin versus paclitaxel/carboplatin/placebo as initial therapy for measurable stage III or IVA, stage IVB, or recurrent endometrial cancer: An NRG Oncology/GOG. Bae-Jump VL, Sill M, Gehurig PA. 2020.
- 30. Dostarlimab for Primary Advanced or Recurrent Endometrial Cancer. Mirza, MR, et al. 23, 2023, M England J Med, Årg. 388, s. 2145-2158.

- 31. New Response Evaluation Criteria in Solid Tumours: Revised RECIST Guideline (Version 1.1). Eisenhauer, EA, et al. 2, 2009, Eur J Cancer, Årg. 45, s. 228-247.
- Medicinrådet. The Danish Medicines Council methods guide for assessing new pharmaceuticals. *medicinraadet.dk.* [Online] 2023. https://medicinraadet.dk/media/5eibukbr/the-danish-medicines-council-methods-guide-for-assessing-new-pharmaceuticals-version-1-3.pdf.
- 33. Beth Woods ES, Stephen Palmer, Nick Latimer, Marta Soares. *Partitioned survival analysis for decision modelling in health care: a critical review.* s.l.: NICE Decision Support Unit, 2017.
- 34. Dostarlimab for primary advanced or recurrent (A/R) endometrial cancer (EC): Outcomes by blinded independent central review (BICR) of the RUBY trial. **Powell, M, et al.** suppl 16, 2023, Journal of Clinical Oncology, Årg. 41, s. 5503-55-03.
- 35. NICE. Dostarlimab for previously treated advanced or recurrent endometrial cancer with high microsatellite instability or mismatch repair deficiency. *Nice Guidance*. [Online] March 2022. page 161. https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/ta779/evidence/committee-papers-pdf-11010121309.
- 36. —. Niraparib for maintenance treatment of advanced ovarian, fallopian tube and peritoneal cancer after response to first-line platinum-based chemotherapy. *Guidance*. [Online] May 2020. page 156. https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/ta673/documents/committee-papers.
- Necitumumab for untreated advanced or metastatic squamous non-small-cell lung cancer. *Guidance*. [Online] September 2016. pages 173 and 177. https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/ta411/documents/committee-papers.
- Health state utility scores in advanced non-small cell lung cancer. Doyle, S, Lloyd, A og Walker, M. 3, Dec 2008, Lung Cancer, Årg. 62, s. 374-80.
- 39. Elicitation of health state utilities in metastatic renal cell carcinoma. Swinburn, P, Lloyd, A og Nathan, P. 2010, Curr Med Res Opin, Årg. 26, s. 1091-6.
- 40. *Health State utilities for non small cell lung cancer.* **Nafees, B, Stafford, M og Gayriel, S.** 84, 2008, Health Qual Life Outcomes, Årg. 6.
- 41. Clinical Activity and Safety of the Anti-Programmmed Death 1 Monoclonal Antibody Dostarlimab for Patients With Recurrent or Advanced Mismatch Repair Deficient Endometrial Cancer: A Nonrandomized Phase 1Clinical Trial. **Oaknin, A, et al.** 11, s.l. : JAMA Oncol., 2020, Årg. 6, s. 1766-72.
- 42. Carboplatin and pegylated liposomal doxorubicin versus carboplatin and paclitaxel in partially platinum-sensitive ovarian cancer patients: results from a subset analysis of the CALYPSO phase III trial. Gadieff, L, et al. 5, s.l. : Ann Oncol., MAy 2012, Årg. 23, s. 1185-1189.
- An Indirect Comparison of the Efficacy and Safety of Dostarlimab and Doxorubicin for the Treatment of Advanced and Recurrent Endometrial Cancer. Mathews, C, et al. 12, s.l.: Oncologist, 9. Dec 2022, Årg. 27, s. 1058-1066.
- 44. Phase 2 study of anastrozole in recurrent estrogen (ER)/progesterone (PR) positive endometrial cancer: The PARAGON trial ANZGOG 0903. Mileshkin, L, et al. 1, Jul 2019, Gynecol Oncol., Årg. 154, s. 29-37.
- 45. **ClinicalTrials.gov.** NCT03981796. A study of dostarlimab plus carboplatin-paclitaxel versus placebo plus carboplation-paclitaxel in patients with recurrent or primary advanced endometrial cancer (RUBY). *ClinicalTrials.gov.* [Online] Updated August 12, 2022. https://clinicaltrials.gov/ct2/show/NCT03981796.



- 46. **GSK.** A Phase 3, Randomized, Double-blind, Multicenter Study of Dostarlimab (TSR-042) plus Carboplatin-paclitaxel ersus Placebo plus Carboplatin.paclitaxel in Patients with Recurrent or Primary Advanced Endometrial Cancer (RUBY). s.l.: GSK, 2023. Clinical Study Report.
- 47. Latimer, N. Undertaking survival analysis for economic evaluations alongside clinical trials extrapolation with patient-level data). s.l.: NICE DSU Technical Support Document 14, 2011.
- 48. A guide to selecting flexible survival models to inform economic evaluations of cancer *immunotherapies*. **Palmer, S. et al.** 2023, Value in Health, Volume 26, s. 185-192.
- 49. Burke, S. Part 3: Model Goodness Metrics. *The Model Building Process*. s.l. : STAT COE-Report-06-2020, 2020.
- 50. GSK. GSK UK Advisory Board: Advanced Endometrial Cancer Survival Outcomes. 2023.
- 51. *The Danish EQ-5D-5L Value Set: A Hybrid Model Using cTTO and DCE Data.* Jensen, C.E., et al. 4, 2021, Appl Health Econ Health Policy, Årg. 19, s. 579-591.
- Medicinrådet. Appendiks til Medicinrådets metodevejledning Aldersjustering. *Ansøgningsskema*. [Online] January 2021. https://medicinraadet- classic.azureedge.net/media/mbtgpjjl/efter-1-januar-2021-appendiks-til-medicinr%C3%A5dets-metodevejledning-aldersjustering-adlegacy.pdf.
- 53. **Pro.medicin.dk.** Caelyx pegylated liposomal. [Online] https://pro.medicin.dk/Medicin/Praeparater/2092.
- 54. —. Carboplatin. [Online] https://pro.medicin.dk/Medicin/Indholdsstoffer/228.
- 55. —. Letrozol. [Online] https://pro.medicin.dk/Medicin/Praeparater/6498.
- 56. —. Paclitaxel. [Online] https://pro.medicin.dk/Medicin/Indholdsstoffer/2052.
- 57. Medicinrådet. Værdisætning af enhedsomkostninger. Ansøgningsskema. [Online] 2023. https://medicinraadetclassic.azureedge.net/media/gpjgcotu/v%C3%A6rdis%C3%A6tning-afenhedsomkostninger-vers-1-7.pdf.
- 58. Burke, S. The Model Building Process Part 3: Model Goodness Metrics. Best Practice. s.l. : STAT COE-Report-06-2020, 2020.

# Appendix A. Main characteristics of studies included

#### Table 30: Main characteristics of RUBY

• •

Trial name: RUBY	NCT number: 03981796
Objective	The primary objectives of Part 1 of the RUBY study were to compare the progression-free survival (PFS) of participants treated with dostarlimab plus CP followed by dostarlimab to participants administered placebo plus CP followed by placebo, as assessed by the Investigator per Response Evaluation Criteria in Solid Tumours version 1.1. in patients with primary advanced or recurrent endometrial cancer.
Publications – title, author, journal, year	Dostarlimab for Primary Advanced or Recurrent Endometrial Cancer, M.R. Mirza et al. The new England Journal of Medicine, published March 27, 2023.
Study type and design	RUBY is a Phase 3, randomized, double-blind, multicenter study in two parts. Part 1 of the study is to evaluate the efficacy and safety of treatment with dostarlimab plus CP followed by dostarlimab versus treatment with placebo plus CP followed by placebo in participants with primary advanced (Stage III or IV) or recurrent EC. Part 2 is to evaluate the efficacy and safety of dostarlimab plus CP followed by lacebo plus CP followed by placebo plus CP followed by placebo plus CP followed by dostarlimab plus niraparib versus placebo plus CP followed by placebo in participants with recurrent or primary advanced (Stage III or IV) or the treatment design for part 1 is presented below.



Trial name: RUBY





The RUBY study consists of a Screening Period (Day -28 to Day -1), a Treatment Period, an End of Treatment Visit, a Safety Follow-up Visit, and a Survival Assessment Period. Following informed consent, participants who met the eligibility criteria for Part 1 were randomized 1:1 to the following study arms:

- Arm 1: Participants received dostarlimab IV plus CP followed by dostarlimab IV.
- Arm 2: Participants received placebo IV plus CP followed by placebo IV.

Randomization was stratified by 3 stratification factors:



Trial name: RUBY	NCT number: 03981796					
	<ul> <li>MMR/MSI status: Determined by local IHC, PCR, or next-generation sequencing test, or by central IHC testing when local testing was not available. The MMR/MSI status for randomization was derived from the data entered at the time of random- ization.</li> </ul>					
	• Prior external pelvic radiotherapy (yes or no): Determined from radiation therapy history provided by investigators at the time of randomization.					
	<ul> <li>Disease status (recurrent, primary Stage III, or primary Stage IV): Derived from the cancer history and disease stage provided by investigators at the time of randomization. Data provided for the most recent FIGO stage and recurrence status were used to assign the participant to the appropriate stratum. If recurrence was selected, participants were assigned to recur- rent strata. If no recurrence was selected, then participants were assigned to primary Stage III or primary Stage IV based on most recent FIGO stage.</li> </ul>					
	Approximately 470 participants were planned for enrolment in Part 1. The participant, Investigator, study staff, the sponsor study team, and its representatives were blinded to the assigned treatment from the time of randomization until database lock as described in the protocol. Treatment assignment could be unblinded by the Investiga- tor for urgent or non-urgent clinical reasons. Study intervention assignment was available to the Investigator upon request for post- study intervention planning.					
Sample size (n)	From July 18, 2019, through February 23, 2021, a total of 607 patients from 113 sites in 19 countries were screened and 494 under- went randomization; 245 were assigned to receive dostarlimab plus CP (dostarlimab group) and 249 were assigned to receive placebo plus CP (placebo group). Seven patients (4 in dostarlimab group and 3 in the placebo group) did not receive treatment and were ex- cluded from the safety analysis. Of the 494 patients who underwent randomization, 118 had dMMR–MSI-H tumours confirmed by					

# • • •

#### Trial name: RUBY

#### NCT number: 03981796







Trial name: RUBY	NCT number: 03981796				
Main inclusion criteria	<ul> <li>Female participant is at least 18 years of age.</li> <li>Participant has histologically or cytologically proven endometrial cancer with recurrent or advanced disease.</li> </ul>				
RUBY part 1	<ul> <li>Participant has inscolgically or cyclologically proven endometrial caliber with recurrent of advanced disease.</li> <li>Participant must have primary Stage III or Stage IV disease or first recurrent endometrial cancer with a low potential for cure by radiation therapy or surgery alone or in combination and meet at least one of the following criteria;         <ol> <li>Participant has primary Stage III A to IIIC1 disease with presence of evaluable or measurable disease per Response Evaluation Criteria in Solid Tumours (RECIST) version (v).1.1 based on Investigator's assessment. Lesions that are equivocal or can be representative of post-operative change should be biopsied and confirmed for the presence of tumour.</li> <li>Participant has primary Stage IIIC1 disease with carcinosarcoma, clear cell, serous, or mixed histology (containing greater than or equal to [&gt;=] 10 percent carcinosarcoma, clear cell, or serous histology) regardless of presence of evaluable or measurable disease on imaging;</li> <li>Participant has primary Stage IIIC2 or Stage IV disease regardless of the presence of evaluable or measurable disease;</li> <li>Participant has first recurrent disease and is naïve to systemic anticancer therapy;</li> <li>Participant has neceived prior neo-adjuvant/adjuvant systemic anticancer therapy and had a recurrence or progression of disease (PD) &gt;=6 months after completing treatment (first recurrence only).</li> </ol></li></ul> <li>Participant has a BECOG performance status of 0 or 1.</li>				
### Main exclusion criteria

### RUBY part 1

•

- Participant has received neo-adjuvant/adjuvant systemic anticancer therapy for primary Stage III or IV disease and:
  - 1. has not had a recurrence or PD prior to first dose on the study OR
  - 2. has had a recurrence or PD within 6 months of completing systemic anticancer therapy treatment prior to first dose on the study.
- Participant has had >1 recurrence of endometrial cancer.
- Participant has received prior therapy with an anti-programmed cell death protein 1 (anti-PD-1), anti-PD-ligand 1 (anti-PD-L1), or anti-PD-ligand 2 (anti-PD-L2) agent.
- Participant has received prior anticancer therapy (chemotherapy, targeted therapies, hormonal therapy, radiotherapy, or immunotherapy) within 21 days or <5 times the half-life of the most recent therapy prior to Study Day 1, whichever is shorter.
- Participant has a concomitant malignancy, or participant has a prior non-endometrial invasive malignancy who has been disease-free for <3 years or who received any active treatment in the last 3 years for that malignancy. Non-melanoma skin cancer is allowed.
- Participant has known uncontrolled central nervous system metastases, carcinomatosis meningitis, or both.
- Participant has not recovered (that is [i.e.], to Grade <=1 or to Baseline) from cytotoxic therapy induced AEs or has received transfusion of blood products (including platelets or red blood cells) or administration of colony-stimulating factors (including granulocyte colony-stimulating factor [G-CSF], granulocyte macrophage colony-stimulating factor [GM-CSF], or recombinant erythropoietin) within 21 days prior to the first dose of study drug.
- Participant has not recovered adequately from AEs or complications from any major surgery prior to starting therapy.
- Participant is currently participating and receiving study treatment or has participated in a study of an investigational agent and received study treatment or used an investigational device within 4 weeks of the first dose of treatment.
- Participant is considered a poor medical risk due to a serious, uncontrolled medical disorder, non-malignant systemic disease, or active infection requiring systemic therapy.
- Participant has received, or is scheduled to receive, a live vaccine within 30 days before first dose of study treatment, during study treatment, and for up to 180 days after receiving the last dose of study treatment.

Trial name: RUBY	NCT number: 03981796
Intervention	Dostarlimab 500 mg IV + carboplatin AUC 5 mg/mL/min IV + paclitaxel 175 mg/m2 IV Q3W for cycles 1–6 followed by dostarlimab 1,000 mg IV Q6W up to 3 years.
	N= 245 (53 dMMR/MSI-H)
Comparator(s)	Placebo + carboplatin AUC 5 mg/mL/min IV + paclitaxel 175 mg/m2 IV Q3W for cycles 1–6 followed by placebo Q6W up to 3 years.
	N= 249 (65 dMMR/MSI-H)
Follow-up time	Median follow-up of 25.4 months (range 19.2 to 37.8) in the overall population
	Median follow-up of 24.8 months (range 19.2 to36.9) in the dMMR/MSI-H population
Is the study used in the health economic model?	Yes
Primary, secondary and exploratory endpoints	<ul> <li>RUBY-1 evaluated dual primary endpoints: <ul> <li>Investigator-assessed PFS according to RECIST v1.1 criteria in patients with dMMR/MSI-H tumours and in the overall trial population.</li> <li>OS in the overall population</li> </ul> </li> <li>Secondary endpoints: <ul> <li>PFS by BICR</li> <li>ORR based on BICR and investigator assessment</li> <li>Duration of response based on BICR and investigator assessment</li> <li>Disease control rate based on BICR and investigator assessment</li> <li>PFS2</li> <li>PROs (EORTC-QLQ-C30; EORTC-QLQ-EN24; EQ-5D-5L)</li> <li>PK and immunogenicity analyses</li> </ul> </li> </ul>
	Exploratory endpoints:



### Trial name: RUBY

### NCT number: 03981796

	Biomarkers in tumour tissue and/or blood
	Safety endpoints:
	• TEAEs
	Clinical laboratory values
	Vital signs
	Physical examination
	ECOG PS
	ECG parameters
	Concomitant medication
Nethod of analysis	All efficacy analyses were intention-to-treat analyses. The Kaplan–Meier method were used to estimate rates of progression-free sur vival and overall survival, and a stratified log-rank test for treatment comparisons, further description regarding extrapolation can be found in Appendix D.
ubgroup analyses	Pre-specified exploratory subgroup analyses of PFS per investigator assessment and OS were performed based on the ITT analysis set and dMMR/MSI-H subset for the ITT analysis set to explore homogeneity of the treatment effect across the following subgroups:
	• Age (<65 years or $\geq$ 65 years)
	Race (White or other)
	<ul> <li>Region (North American, Europe, Western Europe, or Eastern Europe)</li> </ul>
	Histology (endometrioid carcinoma or other)
	<ul> <li>Disease status at baseline (recurrent, primary stage III, or primary stage IV)</li> </ul>
	MMR/MSI status at baseline (dMMR/MSI-H or MMRp/MMS)
	Prior external pelvic radiotherapy (yes or no)

## information



## Appendix B. Efficacy results per study

Results of RUBY-1 (N	CT03981796)			Estimated a effect	bsolute diff	erence in	Estimated r effect	elative diff	erence in	Description of methods used for estimation	References
Outcome	Study arm	N	Result (Cl)	Difference	95% CI	<i>P</i> value	Difference	95% CI	P value		
		1		-				-			
								-			-



Results of RUBY-1 (N	СТ03981796)										
				Estimated a effect	bsolute dif	ference in	Estimated r effect	elative diff	erence in	Description of methods used for estimation	References
Outcome	Study arm	N	Result (Cl)	Difference	95% CI	P value	Difference	95% CI	P value		
				_							



### Table - VII: Response rates for dMMR/MSI-H and overall population in RUBY

• •

	dMMR	/MSI-H	0	verall
	Dostarlimab plus CP (N=53)	Placebo plus CP (N=65)	Dostarlimab plus CP (N=245)	Placebo plus CP (N=249)
Patients with evaluable disease at baseline, no. of patients	49	58	212	219

• •

ORR,no., (% ; 95% Cl)	38 (77.6; 3.4–88.2)	40 (69.0; 55.5–80.5)	149 (70.3; 63.6–76.3)	142 (64.8; 58.1–71.2)
CR PR	15 (30.6) 23 (46.9)	12 (20.7) 28 (48.3)	53 (25.0) 96 (45.3)	43 (19.6) 99 (45.2)
SD	6 (12.2)	10 (17.2)	42 (19.8)	49 (22.4)
No disease	0	1 (1.7)	0	1 (0.5)
PD	2 (4.1)	4 (6.9)	9 (4.2)	16 (7.3)
NE	3 (6.1)	3 (5.2)	12 (5.7)	11 (5.0)
DCR, no., (%; 95% CI)	44 (89.8; 77.8–96.6)	51 (87.9; 76.7–95.0)	191 (90.1; 85.3–93.8)	192 (87.7; 82.6–91.7)
Responders, no. of patients	38	40	149	142
DOR, median, months (95% CI)	NE (10.1–NE)	5.4 (3.9–8.1)	10.6 (8.2–17.6)	6.2 (4.4–6.7)
DOR ≥12 months, no. (%)	22 (57.9)	7 (17.5)	60 (40.3)	29 (20.4)
Probability of DOR, % (95% CI)				
6 months	76.1 (59.0–86.8)	46.2 (30.2–60.7)	69.4 (60.9–76.4)	50.8 (42.2–58.8)
12 months	62.1 (44.4–75.5)	19.2 (8.6–33.1)	47.3 (38.6–55.5)	22.6 (15.9–30.0)
24 months	62.1 (44.4–75.5)	13.2 (4.6–26.3)	38.0 (29.4–46.5)	13.0 (7.5–20.2)

Source: Supplement to Mirza MR, Chase DM, Slomovitz BM, et al. Dostarlimab for primary advanced or recurrent endometrial cancer. N Engl J Med. DOI: 10.1056/NEJMoa2216334





# Dostarlimab plus CP Placebo plus CP Total (N=53) (N=65) (N=118)



# Dostarlimab plus CP Placebo plus CP Total (N=53) (N=65) (N=118)



	Dostarlimab plus CP	Placebo plus CP	Total
	(N=53)	(N=65)	(N=118)
		I	
		I	

# Appendix C. Comparative analysis of efficacy

Not applicable.

• 0

Table 31: Comparative analysis of studies comparing [intervention] to [comparator] for patients with [indication]

Outcome Stu in t		Absolute di	fference in effect	Relative difference in effect	Method used for quanti- – tative synthesis	Result used in the health eco- nomic analysis?
	Studies included in the analysis	Difference	CI P value	Difference CI P value		
N/A						



# Appendix D. Extrapolation

## 1.1. Extrapolation of PFS

### 1.1.1. Data input

RUBY-1 primary data cut off (September 2022) for the dMMR/MSI-H population.







Хх









	Kasta	Dostarlimab + CP	СР
Distribution	Knots		

























Seven parametric dependent (by treatment covariate) models were fitted to each arm of the study data; exponential, Weibull, Gompertz, log-logistic, log-normal, generalised Gamma and Gamma distribution (**Error! Reference source not found.** and xx

). A summary of the goodness-of-fit statistics for the PFS extrapolations is available in Table - VIII.



 Table - VIII: AIC and BIC statistical goodness-of-fit data for PFS by INV – dMMR/MSI-H data set

 (dependent models) IA1 datacut

































Dostarlimab plus CP	СР

Distantion at a second	Dostariim	ab plus CP	CP		
Distribution					









### 1.2.10. Cure-point

N/A



# Appendix E. Serious adverse events

System organ class, n (%)	Dostarlimab plus CP	Placebo plus CP	Total
Preferred term, n (%)	(N=241)	(N=246)	(N=487)

System organ class, n (%)	Dostarlimab plus CP	Placebo plus CP	Total
Preferred term, n (%)	(N=241)	(N=246)	(N=487)

129

	•	•	•
•			0
•			•
	•	•	

System organ class, n (%)	Dostarlimab plus CP	Placebo plus CP	Total
Preferred term, n (%)	(N=241)	(N=246)	(N=487)

In addition to the picture of serious adverse events, specific immune related adverse events in this trial are relevant. Find the summary of immune-related adverse events for the overall population in **Error! Reference source not found.**.

## Table - IX: Immune-related Adverse Events: Summary of treatment-emergent immune-related adverse events by immune-related adverse event category and preferred term (Overall population, Safety analysis set)

Category, n (%)	Dostarlimab plus CP		Placebo plus CP	
Preferred term, n (%)	(N=241)		(N=246)	
	All events	Dostarlimab-related	All events	Placebo-related
Any immune-related AE	137 (56.8%)	92 (38.2%)	88 (35.8%)	38 (15.4%)
Arthralgia	32 (13.3%)	14 (5.8%)	31 (12.6%)	16 (6.5%)
Infusion-related reaction	31 (12.9%)	4 (1.7%)	30 (12.2%)	0
Hypothyroidism	27 (11.2%)	27 (11.2%)	8 (3.3%)	7 (2.8%)
Hypersensitivity/ Drug hypersensi- tivity	6 (2.5%)/7 (2.9%)	0/0	4 (1.6%)/11 (4.5%)	1 (0.4%) /1 (0.4%)
Rash	21 (8.7%)	16 (6.6%)	6 (2.4%)	5 (2.0%)



Rash maculo-papular	16 (6.6%)	11 (4.6%)	0	0
Pruritus	15 (6.2%)	8 (3.3%)	4 (1.6%)	3 (1.2%)
ALT increased	15 (6.2%)	14 (5.8%)	2 (0.8%	2 (0.8%)
AST increased	12 (5.0%)	10 (4.1%)	1 (0.4%)	1 (0.4%)
Hyperthyroidism	8 (3.3%)	8 (3.3%)	1 (0.4%)	1 (0.4%)

Source: Supplement to Mirza MR, Chase DM, Slomovitz BM, et al. Dostarlimab for primary advanced or recurrent endometrial cancer. N Engl J Med. DOI: 10.1056/NEJMoa2216334

Dose reduction of dostarlimab is not recommended. Dosing delay or discontinuation may be required based on individual safety and tolerability (1). Dose modifications for chemotherapy in the overall population are listed below.

### Table - X: Dose Modifications of Carboplatin and Paclitaxel

	Dostarlimab plus CP	Placebo plus CP
	(N=241)	(N=246)
Carboplatin, no. (%)		
Patients with any infusion interruptions	20 (8.3)	18 (7.3)
Patients with any infusion delays >3 days as deter- mined by investigator	88 (36.5)	88 (35.8)
Patients with any missed infusions	1 (0.4)	3 (1.2)

Patients with any intended dose reduction	17 (7.1)	22 (8.9)					
Any TEAE leading to discontinuation of carboplatin	24 (10.0)	19 (7.7)					
Paclitaxel, no. (%)							
Patients with any infusion interruptions	38 (15.8)	45 (18.3)					
Patients with any infusion delays >3 days as deter- mined by investigator	85 (35.3)	82 (33.3)					
Patients with any missed infusions	4 (1.7)	4 (1.6)					
Patients with any intended dose reduction	56 (23.2)	54 (22.0)					
Any TEAE leading to discontinuation of paclitaxel	24 (10.0)	23 (9.3)					

Source: Supplement to Mirza MR, Chase DM, Slomovitz BM, et al. Dostarlimab for primary advanced or recurrent endometrial cancer. N Engl J Med. DOI: 10.1056/NEJMoa2216334

Safety data in this application is data based on the full study population, as no specific safety differences is expected between the dMMR/MSI-H population and the overall population. Nevertheless, an overall summary of treatment-emergent adverse events only for the dMMR/MSI-H population is included below to cover the specific population for this application.



Adverse event category	Dostarlimab plus CP	Placebo plus CP	Total
	(N=52)	(N=65)	(N=117)
		I	
		I	



Adverse event category	Dostarlimab plus CP	Placebo plus CP	Total
	(N=52)	(N=65)	(N=117)



# Appendix F. Health-related quality of life

Dost	arlimab plus CP		СР	Dostarlimab plus CP vs. CP
N	Mean (SE)	N	Mean (SE)	Difference (95% CI) p-value



Dost	tarlimab plus CP		СР	Dostarlimab plus CP vs. CP
Ν	Mean (SE)	N	Mean (SE)	Difference (95% CI) p-value



# Appendix G. Probabilistic sensitivity analyses

Input parameter	Point estimate	Lower bound	Upper bound	Probability distribution



# Input parameter Point estimate Lower bound Upper bound Probability distribution



# Input parameter Point estimate Lower bound Upper bound Probability distribution



# Input parameter Point estimate Lower bound Upper bound Probability distribution


# Probability distribution Input parameter Point estimate Lower bound Upper bound







#### Probability distribution Input parameter Point estimate Lower bound Upper bound













# Appendix H. Literature searches for the clinical assessment

Not Applicable.

## 1.1. Efficacy and safety of the intervention and comparator(s)

#### Table 32 Bibliographic databases included in the literature search

Database	Platform/source	Relevant period for the search	Date of search completion
N/A			

Table 33 Other sources included in the literature search

Source name	Location/source	Search strategy	Date of search	
N/A				

#### Table 34 Conference material included in the literature search

Conference	Source of ab- stracts	Search strategy	Words/terms searched	Date of search
N/A				

#### **1.1.1. Search strategies**

Table 35 of search strategy table for [name of database]

No.	Query	Results
N/A		

#### **1.1.2.** Systematic selection of studies

Table 36 Inclusion and exclusion criteria used for assessment of studies

Clinical effectiveness	Inclusion criteria	Exclusion criteria
N/A		



#### Table 37 Overview of study design for studies included in the technology assessment

Study/ID	Aim	Study design	Patient population	Interven tion and compara- tor (sample size (n))	Primary outcome and follow- up period	Secondary outcome and follow- up period
N/A						

#### 1.1.3. Quality assessment

N/A

### 1.1.4. Unpublished data

N/A



# Appendix I. Literature searches for health-related quality of life

# 1.1. Health-related quality-of-life search

Table 38: Bibliographic databases included in the literature search

Database	Platform	Relevant period for the search	Date of search completion
MEDLINE			22.02.2023

Table 39: Other sources included in the literature search

Source name	Location/source	Search strategy	Date of search	
N/A				

Table 40: Conference material included in the literature search

Conference	Source of abstracts	Search strategy	Words/terms searched	Date of search
N/A				

#### 1.1.1. Search strategies

#### Table 41: Search strategy for MEDLINE

Search Num- ber	Search Terms	Original SLR (10 Nov 2021)	SLR Update #1 (22 Feb 2023)
1	exp endometrial neoplasms/ or ((endometrial or endo- metrium or uterine or uterus) adj3 (cancer\$ or neo- plasm\$ or hyperplas\$ or malignan\$ or carcinoma\$ or sarcoma\$ or adenocarcinoma\$ or tumor\$ or tu- mour\$)).ti,ab.	59,567	63417
2	exp Neoplasm Metastasis/ or (advanced or recurrent or recurrence or metastas\$ or metastat\$ or end-stage or late-stage or terminal or stage 3\$ or stage iii\$ or stage three or stage iii\$ or stage 4\$ or stage iv or stage four).ti,ab.	2,019,500	2189517
3	1 and 2	17,539	18943
4*	(sf6 or sf 6 or short form 6 or shortform 6 or sf six or sfsix or shortform six or short form six or shortform6 or short form6 or disutilit\$ or standard gamble\$ or time trade off or time tradeoff or tto or hui or hui1 or hui2 or hui3 or	24,907	28633

	health utility idex or health utilities index or eq or eu- roqol or euro qol or eq5d\$ or eq 5d\$ or euroqual or euro qual).ti,ab,kw.		
5*	((health\$ adj2 year\$ adj2 equivalent\$) or (health adj3 (utilit\$ or status)) or (utilit\$ adj3 (valu\$ or measur\$ or health or life or estimat\$ or elicit\$ or disease or score\$ or weight)) or (preference\$ adj3 (valu\$ or measur\$ or health or life or estimat\$ or elicit\$ or disease or score\$ or instrument or instruments))).ti,ab,kw.	99,212	110517
6	3 and (4 or 5)	22	32
7	Review.pt.	2,876,482	3109679
8	Systematic Review.pt. or Systematic Reviews as Topic/ or Meta-Analysis.pt. or exp Network Meta-Analysis/ or exp Meta-Analysis as Topic/ or Cochrane Database of Sys- tematic Reviews.jn.	265,459	328516
9	(systematic\$ or systematic or pubmed or medline or Em- base or Cochrane or meta-analysis or meta analysis or metaanalysis or meta-analyses or meta analyses or metaanalyses or meta-analyzed or meta analyzed or metaanalyzed or meta-analysed or meta analysed or metaanalysed or ((indirect or mixed or multiple) and treatment comparison)).ti,ab.	743,736	865809
10	7 not (8 or 9)	2,611,129	2797002
11	case reports/ or case study/ or case report\$.jw. or Edito- rial.pt. or Letter.pt. or Note.pt.	3,764,163	3969420
12	(Ephemera or "Introductory Journal Article" or News or "Newspaper Article" or Editorial or Comment or Over- all).pt. or in vitro Techniques/ or in vitro study/ or (com- mentary or editorial or comment or letter or mice or rat or mouse or animal or murine).ti.	3,148,598	3301741
13	or/10-12	8,237,413	8695000
14	6 not 13	20	30
15	14 not ((exp animal/ or nonhuman/) not exp human/)	20	30
16	(202108\$ or 202109\$ or 202110\$ or 202111\$ or 202112\$ or 2022\$ or 2023\$).ed,dt.		3072865
17	15 and 16		13

### 1.1.2. Quality assessment and generalizability of estimates

N/A

### 1.1.3. Unpublished data

N/A



# Appendix J. Literature searches for input to the health economic model

Not available.

## 1.2. External literature for input to the health economic model

#### 1.2.1. Ex. Systematic search for [...]

#### Table 42: Sources included in the search

Database	Platform/source	Relevant period for the search	Date of search comple- tion
N/A			

#### 1.2.2. Ex. Targeted literature search for [estimates]

Table 43: Sources included in the targeted literature search

Source name/ database	Location/source	Search strategy	Date of search
N/A			



Danish Medicines Council Secretariat Dampfærgevej 21-23, 3<sup>rd</sup> floor DK-2100 Copenhagen Ø

+ 45 70 10 36 00 medicinraadet@medicinraadet.dk

www.medicinraadet.dk